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Five-Year Financial Summary

EFHHHE

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years, as extracted from the Group's

published financial statements, is set out below.

For the year ended 31 March

Revenue

Profit before tax

Income tax expense

KA

B 1 B st 7
s

Profit and total comprehensive income for £ A% | &% 2 B U A 458

the year

As at 31 March

Total assets wEE

Total liabilities FEN=R

Total equity MR
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BE=ZHA="1—HIFE

2015 2014 2013 2012
—E-RF —T—NF —T—=F —T——F
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FHET FH T FH& T
702,856 1,477,332 984,296 690,043
19,052 36,034 47,941 33,692
(3,178) (7,638) (7,875) (5,522)
15,874 28,396 40,066 28,170
R=ZA=4+—H
2015 2014 2013 2012
—E-RF ZTNF ZT—=F ZT—=F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTExT Fi& T FAET FA&T
376,040 460,726 629,531 439,535
(149,913)  (250,473)  (485,082)  (335,152)
226,127 210,253 144,449 104,383

AEEBEREMBRFRE2EE BEENRAGEM
Z(MBaAKECTEMBERR)SEINOT -

2011
—E——F
HK$'000
FHET

673,168

29,860
(4,898)

24,962

2011
—E——F
HK$'000
FHET

221,782
(145,569)

76,213



Chairman’s Statement
FE®RSE

Financial Performance (HK$'000)
Revenue
Gross profit
Gross profit margin
Profit attributable to owners of the parent

MBRR(TET)
WA
EF
ESPIES
BRAEAARERN

Financial Position (HK$'000) B 7 AR R (& T)
Cash and cash equivalents RekBEEED
Total assets BEE
Total liabilities waE
Net assets BEFE
Current ratio (Note 1) BN R (B 5E1)
Gearing ratio (Note 2) ERL & (i i72)
Return on equity (Note 3) {& AN 18] 3% & (B 77 3)
Notes: W&t -
1. Current ratio is calculated by dividing current assets by current liabilities 1.
as at the end of the reporting period.
2. Gearing ratio is calculated by dividing total interest-bearing bank loans 2.

by the total equity as at the end of the reporting period.

3. The calculation of return on equity is based on the profit attributable 3.
to owners of the parent during the year divided by the ending equity
attributable to owners of the parent as at the end of the reporting

period and multiplied by 100%.

2015 2014
—E-0F —E-MF
702,856 1,477,332
40,803 60,163
5.8% 4.1%
15,874 28,396
143,693 166,554
376,040 460,726
149,913 250,473
226,127 210,253
2.5 1.8

0% 0%
7.0% 13.5%

RO RDREENROTHEERURD AR
HEBH -

BRI ETRBREP RN ERITERBESLR A
BESFHESE

B 01 45 T 4 4F 40 63 A A B A A R B
B3R 25 B 5 B9 65 73 7 B 5 A B A 8 25 75 FE A 100%
SHEB -
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Chairman’s Statement (Cont'd)
FTEWRE (B

| am pleased to present the annual results of Excel Development
(Holdings) Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively,
the “Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2015.

In the year under review, the Group recorded a consolidated turnover
of approximately HK$702.9 million (2014: HK$1,477.3 million),
representing a decrease of 52.4% when compared with that of last
year. The decrease was mainly attributable to the decrease in revenue
from a building construction project in Tsuen Wan during the year.

The Group's revenue generated from the building construction
project in Tsuen Wan, decreased by 81.1% to approximately
HK$159.7 million (2014: HK$842.8 million) as compared with the
corresponding period in previous year. Such decrease is consistent
with the Group’s current strategy to focus on civil engineering
construction works which have relatively higher gross profit margin
when comparing that of building construction and maintenance
works.

During the year ended 31 March 2015, the Group recorded a gross
profit of approximately HK$40.8 million, achieving a gross profit
margin of approximately 5.8%. The gross profit margin increased
from approximately 4.1% for the year ended 31 March 2014 to
approximately 5.8% for the year ended 31 March 2015, primarily
due to the revenue generated from civil engineering construction
works represented over 77% of the Group’s consolidated revenue for
the year ended 31 March 2015 (2014: 42%).

On 5 June 2015, subsequent to the balance sheet date, the
Company was informed by the then controlling shareholder, Vantage
International (Holdings) Limited (the “Vantage”), that a sale and
purchase agreement was entered into between Profit Chain
Investments Limited (“Vendor”, a direct wholly-owned subsidiary of
Vantage), Youth Force Asia Ltd. (“Purchaser”) and Vantage. Pursuant
to the sale and purchase agreement, the Vendor had agreed to sell
and the Purchaser had agreed to purchase the aggregate interest of
150,000,000 shares of the Company, representing 75% of the entire
issued share capital of the Company, at an aggregate consideration
of HK$485,010,000 or HK$3.2334 per share (the “Share Sale").

Following the completion of the Share Sale, the Purchaser intends to
continue the existing principal business of the Group, while at the
same time exploring other business opportunities.

5 Excel Development (Holdings) Limited
RRERBRAF

EAMARZBEERERIFATEARADEHE
MBAR (MBI AEENBEE_T-—AF=A="1
—BIEFENRFEE -

REBEFRA  AEEHSF LS WA X702,900,000
770 (T — P04 : 1,477,300,00058 7T) » A F4F 4
ERHEFHE TRL52.4% It TE%FEHNAK
FEASE-—HUNEZENEFEEIREBERZ
U ARk A BT B o

BEFFELE  ALKERAZEEFEETR
5 H & U AR 2281.1% & 49 4159,700,0007% 7T (=
T —PO4F : 842,800,000/ 7T) © %R B AR EHH
EREIARIBEEER(EMNEREREFESE
ITRAEE)ZBEITREHER -

BE—_Z—RAF=-A=+—HIFE AEEHEE
F F#%740,800,00078 7t * EFIEH58% - = EHh
RERIBRBEEEENRAGEAEEREZ - —
AF=A=+—BLEFEMNEZRAERARTI% (ZF
—UF42%) A EFEHEFRBZ44.1%
BRERFE Z#58% °

RZE—RAFANARH(EEHRER) ARRIEER
2EREBER BEERERARATAEDEH
Profit Chain Investments Limited ([& 7] &&=
ZEHEZ2EAWMEARAT)  Youth Force Asia Ltd. ([ E
TDEBEEITVEEHZE REEEHS B
FREHEME 7R EEE150,000,000 AKX A]
f&1n (FHERARR EEHEEHITRAZTISN) 2 & &
i RES X A485,010,00087C © sSkFREMH
3.2334B ([ M HE]D -

EREBROEETKR BORERETAREZ
REXTEXH RABTSRKEOEBHE -



Chairman’s Statement (Cont'd)
FTERE (B

The outlook for the construction industry in Hong Kong is expected
to keep booming in the coming vyears. However, there remain
challenges that are unlikely to dissipate in the near future, such as
continuously rising labour wages and cost of construction materials
and shortage of skilled labour. The Group would therefore exercise
more caution when tendering new construction contracts and
continue to selectively undertake new rewarding contracts.

The Group will make use of its competitive strengths by continuing to
improve its quality of services and competitiveness to capitalise on
the trend of increasing civil engineering construction works projects
in Hong Kong in the coming years to further strengthen the Group’s
business growth.

On behalf of the Board of Directors, | would like to take this
opportunity to express my sincere thanks and gratitude to our
management team and staff for their hard work and dedication, as
well as our shareholders, business partners and associates, bankers
and auditors for their continuous support to the Group.

Yau Kwok Fai
Chairman

Hong Kong, 19 June 2015

EMEAIRENAFHSEERT  HEHA
DHEESHE  SREERARRM AR
BLR  URAFRIER - KNEBSRZERHN
HERERBETEREEGEBIW AT AR
BHMATEIMIER -

AEEREBERSBREEZREFHEERMD

BEEY RERARAFEBLATREEER
THHMOES (- S REAARBOES
K-

RECAAEREKERARESFEANASEETE
EEBRE2EBETIRERONEN  BRAKSS
ATABRBHEBEAN TREHFBRR EBEHERE
TERH - ERBITRAZBENE NE B A HIHF -

T
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Summary of Significant Contracts on Hand

ERXAFHOME

The following table summarises our significant contracts on hand as

at 31 March 2015:

Particulars of the contract

BHRE

Waterworks
Replacement and rehabilitation of water mains stage 3
— Mains in Wan Chai District (19/WSD/08)

Replacement and rehabilitation of water mains stage 3
— Mains on Hong Kong Island East (20/WSD/08)

Replacement and rehabilitation of water mains stage 4 phase 1

— Mains in West Kowloon, Kwai Tsing and Tsuen Wan
(13/WSD/10)

Replacement and rehabilitation of water mains stage 4 phase 1
— Major mains in Eastern New Territories (10/WSD/11)

Replacement and rehabilitation of water mains stage 4 phase 1

— Remaining mains on Hong Kong Island (3/WSD/12)

Roads and drainage works

Lee Tung Street/McGregor Street, Wan Chai, Hong Kong
(Road works)

Provision of external cable construction works and outside
telecommunications plant maintenance services

Junction improvement works at Wan Po Road/Wan O Road,
Tseung Kwan O

Landslip preventive and remedial works to slopes

Upgrading/Improvement works to Lands Department slopes
in the Northern Regions

7 Excel Development (Holdings) Limited
TRRERERARE

FHEAH:

KBIRE

B REBEKETEFEIRE
— B {F &K E T2 (19/WSD/08)

iR REEKETEFEIRE
— BB HREKE T2(20/WSD/08)

ERRIEEKEFEFIREFE S
— NBET - EF R EEIKE TR (13/WSD/10)
B REEKETEFAEREH

— AR BKETRALHN0/WSD/T)

ERREEKETEFIREFE S
— BERHBTEEKEIRZAHE/WSD/12)

ERREBIR

EBEEHMRE  ENHREEENBEHRNETE

REPHEEERREERE
% H R IR BBRBEEOKSIRE

Fib WRERARFBRERTE

wBREIL D BN EE  HETRE

TERBABMAR-_Z-—AF=RA=+—HHEK

Contract sum
EREH
HK$ million
BEET

348

362

616

345

467

26

(Note)
(Bt i)

23

158



Summary of Significant Contracts on Hand (Cont'd)

ERXRTHAAME(E)

Particulars of the contract

BRFEE

Utilities civil engineering works

Term contract for provision of civil engineering works for the
telecommunication networks and associated facilities

Provision of integrated field works for field services in
Hong Kong region

Provision of integrated field works for field services in
Kowloon region

Provision of works for integrated blockwiring infrastructure

Provision of civil works for cable circuit improvement for
certain areas of the Central and Western District of the
Hong Kong Island

Cable trenching works for North Point 132kv GIS improvement
(Phase 2 — Stage 2)

Gas pipelaying work at King’'s Road between Shipyard Lane and
Healthy Street East

Civil works for rehabilitation of water reservoirs, fire-proofing
improvement work for structures at MSB and miscellaneous
improvement works at LPS & LMX

Other — Building construction works

Carcass work contract for proposed property development at
Tsuen Wan west station, Tsuen Wan, N.T.

Note: No contract sum provided in the contracts due to the nature
of the relevant contracts.

Contract sum

X kA
HK$ million
BEET
ARREBEIARAIRE
REETMAELEAER B2 T ARAIREEHELD —
(Note)
(Bt i)
REETBTRGEAEEBRRSE —
(Note)
(1 52)
RENERESEBEERS —
(Note)
(Bt i)
GREBTFEMEBERIRERE —
(Note)
(1 52)
REBESTEBMEETEHEEFEREZTLAIE 42
IEAIRTFRAEBBEABMEEESRENIE 3
(2P B — 26288)
EEERBERARIR 21
NMTFRMISERBERERREG2MH)
MYZREBMBEHARALR  MEXRSIREZRE 35
RMEIRREERKEIR
EM—&?EEIE
MAZLELZETUEAMEZTREENIBEETR 1,605
aH
ik ERAHIEE  BEHANLBREANEH
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EIEERNm N

All of the Group’s contracts undertaken for both civil engineering
construction business and building construction and maintenance
business were for customers which are independent third parties
including certain departments of the Government of Hong Kong
("Government”), public utilities companies and private organisations
in Hong Kong.

The Group recorded turnover of approximately HK$702.9 million,
decreased by 52.4% for the year ended 31 March 2015. Included in
the turnover was: (i) revenue from civil engineering works of
approximately HK$543.0 million, decreased by 12.8% from
approximately HK$622.5 million in previous year; and (i) revenue
from building construction and maintenance works of approximately
HK$159.9 million, decreased by 81.3% from approximately HK$854.8
million in previous year.

The gross profit margin generated from civil engineering construction
works was about 7.2% for the year ended 31 March 2015 (2014:
8.2%) while the gross profit margin generated from building
construction and maintenance works was only about 1.0% for the
year ended 31 March 2015 (2014: 1.0%).

As the revenue generated from civil engineering construction works
represented over 77% of the Group’s consolidated revenue for the
year ended 31 March 2015 (2014: 42%), the Group’s overall gross
profit margin increased from approximately 4.1% for the year ended
31 March 2014 to approximately 5.8% for the year ended 31 March
2015.

As of 31 March 2015, the Group had 18 significant projects in
progress, including 6 projects in the public sector and 12 projects in
the private sector. All such significant projects in progress, except the
building construction project in Tsuen Wan, are civil engineering
construction projects.

As of 31 March 2015, the total contract sum and the total
outstanding values of the Group’s substantial projects in progress
were approximately HK$4,051 million and HK$742 million
respectively.

9 Excel Development (Holdings) Limited
RRERBRAF

AEEEROMETIAIREEEBRIEFES
MREXEBANBREBLE=STFF BEE
ANETEAEBRN(BRAED MM - ABEXAA
PYEIN-TF

REBE-_Z—RAE=A=+—HIEE K EEFE
15 % % %8 49702,900,000/8 7T * N #£52.4% - & %
BEE: ()RE T ARKIREAU AL AES543,000,000
BT BEFFE4622,500,0008 71040 12.8%
FiKEEFEEMREIBIEONKRANS
159,900,000/ 7T + B A FF/EH854,800,000/8 T
1 81.3%

TARIBNENERBEE-_ZT—HF=ZF=1+—
AIEEEHNAT2% (ZE—NE:82%)  AME
FREMREIEZNEINERBZE-_ZE—HF=
A=+ —ALFERHAI%(ZZE—HF:
1.0%) °

HREBEE-_Z—RAF=R=+—HIEFELXKRL
BREEEEHRAGAEENGEBABTI7% (=
T—UF 42%) AEFNNEREFRHAZDH4.1%
WREERNFE ZH5.8% °

RECZE-—RAF=A=1+—R AEBEHEFTN\HE
REZBERCNERLFPIEL R+ EALZ AP
HR) - EZSEENEREAUAREENE
FRETRRABKRINEREIATIREZERR -

R-ZZFB-RAF=A=+—R AKENERERZR
BENENRSBERAENIRENEED NG
4,051,000,0007% 7T }2742,000,0007% JT °



Management Discussion and Analysis (Cont’d)

ERE R wm Lo (&)

During the year ended 31 March 2015, the Group was awarded with
the following new substantial contracts regarding civil engineering
construction works:

o Upgrading/Improvement Works to Lands Department Slopes in
the Northern Regions

o Cable Trenching Works for North Point 132kv GIS Improvement
(Phase 2 — Stage 2)

o Gas Pipelaying Work at King’s Road Between Shipyard Lane and
Healthy Street East

o Civil Works for Rehabilitation of Water Reservoirs, Fire-proofing
Improvement Work for Structures at MSB and Miscellaneous
Improvement Works at LPS & LMX

According to the Government’s Budget 2015/16, it is estimated that
capital expenditure for 2015/16 will be HK$86.5 billion, including
HK$70 billion on capital works. Capital works expenditure is
expected to maintain at relatively high levels in the next few years.

In view of the increasing public expenditure on infrastructure by
Government in the forthcoming vyears, we believe that the civil
engineering construction industry has significant market potential and
promising prospects. To further strengthen our Group’s business
growth, we will continue to tender for new waterworks, roads and
drainage works, slope and other civil engineering construction works
offered by various departments of the Government and private
organization.

While the outlook for the construction industry in Hong Kong looks
promising in the long run, there remain challenges that are unlikely
to dissipate in the near future. They include continuously rising labour
wages and cost of construction materials and shortage of skilled
labour. In addition, the sluggish progress of deliberation in Legislative
Council, which has resulted in the mounting of backlog of funding
proposals, also delays in the rolling out of public infrastructure works
in Hong Kong. The business and profitability of our Group may be
affected if such delay continues.

REBEE-_T—AF=A=+—HILEERX
ERUTERIARIENTHAN:

AR E

. WEEEILDRMNEER RETE

. ItAIRTRAEBEHBEASER
E(F2BE — F28)

HIT

. HREEREEGESRIREMTRAMBER
REEREFZHE)

. FMYEEMBEHNREALE  MEXRET
Rz R NEIREREERKE IR

BEBF-_Z—1,/ — "FHEENFREER
A ZE—R /A FENELEHAE A865EE
0 EFBET00EBTHEARATEAS - BarE
ARIRHTETRBESRBLERSKE -

BRI AR R A F A IR BB RRGEA R HF
X BMBEGEEIAIRRETRXABEANTS
BORICHARSR - RTE-TZBERNEENER
PE P9 A 4B R IR IR & BOPT R AL & AR A
HEEMKETE BEERBIRE MNERE
et RTRZEERR -

BATSIREAEEXBH =  HEHRDER
EEHE BREECERAREMBRALR N
NAFRIEH BE YV IEAeFEAZIREBEEN
EEEE BERASEIEZ UBRETAHRKE
BIRIEEH T - HERNBRBE RANE
BRAEFMENATESXEFE -
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Cont'd)

TEEMwmE D (E)

Revenue

Our revenue decreased by approximately HK$774.4 million, or
52.4%, from approximately HK$1,477.3 million for the year ended 31
March 2014 to approximately HK$702.9 million for the year ended
31 March 2015. The decrease was primarily due to the revenue from
the building construction project in Tsuen Wan decreased by
approximately HK$683.1 million, or 81.1%, from approximately
HK$842.8 million for the year ended 31 March 2014 to
approximately HK$159.7 million for the year ended 31 March 2015.

Contract Costs

Our contract costs decreased by approximately HK$755.1 million, or
53.3%, from approximately HK$1,417.2 million for the year ended 31
March 2014 to approximately HK$662.1 million for the year ended
31 March 2015. Such decrease was in line with our decrease in
revenue during the year.

Gross Profit and Gross Profit Margin

Our gross profit decreased by approximately HK$19.4 million or
32.2%, from approximately HK$60.2 million for the year ended 31
March 2014 to approximately HK$40.8 million for the year ended 31
March 2015. However, our gross profit margin improved from
approximately 4.1% to approximately 5.8% which was primarily due
to the fact the revenue generated from civil engineering construction
works represented over 77% (2014: 42%) of the Group’s
consolidated revenue for the year ended 31 March 2015.

Other Income and Gains

Other income and gains decreased by approximately HK$4.3 million
from approximately HK$7.5 million for the year ended 31 March 2014
to approximately HK$3.2 million for the year ended 31 March 2015.
The decrease was mainly because no staff was provided to assist or
supervise the Retained Vantage Group for the building construction
project in Tsuen Wan. Accordingly, no reimbursement of staff cost
from the Retained Vantage Group during the year (2014: HK$5.5
million).

1 1 Excel Development (Holdings) Limited
RRERBRAF

KA
BANBABRBEE-_T—NF=A=+T—HLF
[E W9 #91,477,300,0007%8 JT I8 4 #7774,400,0007% It
(K524%) EBE-_E—RHE=A=1t—RHIEE
#)#9702,900,000/8 7T - WA R ETEHREEK
EFEEaTIREENKABREEZE_ZT—HNF=A
=+ — B 1k FE 1 £842,800,00078 JT ik L 4
683,100,000/ 7T (K 81.1%) EEHE T —HE=FA
=+ —HIEFEH4159,700,00078 7T °

BHHEAK

RPN AEORABRE-_E—NE=A=+—H
1 £ B 89 491,417,200,0003% 7T 38 2> 49755,100,000
BT (HESB33%) EEHE-_T—RHE=A=+—H8I1t
FEH#)662,100,00078 7T ° A #) Ak A B9 sk 2 B2 3,
FIERBKRARMD — 2 -

EFRNRER=ZE
BMNENBEEE-—E—NF=ZA=1+—HBLHF
€ B9 4960,200,0007% 7T 8 4> £719,400,0007% 7T (3
N2%)EHE_TE—RAF=—A=1+t—HILFEH
#740,800,000/ 7T ° ZAMM - L UL AR EF XA A
AN %IERELNS8%  ETERANEIARIRER
EEEHNRAGAEBRHEZE-_ST—RAFEF=ZA=1+
—BLEFENKEARABI7I% (ZF — M F:
42%) °

Hia g A R =

Hibg A RWFHEEZE T —NE=ZF=+—H
IEFER#97,500,0007% JT i 4> 494,300,000 T =
Bea—_Z—RAF - A=+—HI-FE/%3,200,000
BT Bt ARKRFN RO EERLREELD
BFREETRBEBETSAEABAEEE T UAWE
HEBRCZHREBER - At RAFELREKR
BREEREEEREMELHEIKXAEN(ZF
— P 4F : 5,500,000/ 7T) °



Management Discussion and Analysis (Cont’d)

TEEMm NN (E)

Administrative Expenses

Administrative expenses decreased by approximately HK$6.5 million
or 20.7%, from approximately HK$31.4 million for the year ended 31
March 2014 to approximately HK$24.9 million for the year ended 31
March 2015. The decrease was attributable to the listing expense of
approximately HK$9.5 million which was recognised as expense in
prior year while no listing expense incurred for this year. The
decrease was partially offset by the general increase in auditors’
remuneration and administration staff cost during the year.

Finance Costs

Finance costs decreased by 80.1% for the year ended 31 March
2015. The decrease was mainly due to lower interest incurred on the
interest-bearing bank loans which were borrowed and fully repaid
during the year.

Income Tax Expense

Income tax expense decreased by approximately HK$4.4 million from
approximately HK$7.6 million for the year ended 31 March 2014 to
approximately HK$3.2 million for the year ended 31 March 2015. The
decrease was mainly attributable to the decrease in profit before tax
from approximately HK$36.0 million for the year ended 31 March
2014 to approximately HK$19.1 million for the year ended 31 March
2015.

The effective tax rate decreased from approximately 21.2% for the
year ended 31 March 2014 to approximately 16.7% for the year
ended 31 March 2015 due to the capital nature of the listing
expenses of approximately HK$9.5 million recognised in prior year,
which made such expenses not tax deductible.

Profit Attributable to Owners of the Parent

As a result of the foregoing, profit for the year attributable to
owners of the parent decreased by approximately HK$12.5 million, or
44.0% from approximately HK$28.4 million for the year ended 31
March 2014 to approximately HK$15.9 million for the year ended 31
March 2015. QOur net profit margin increased from approximately
1.9% for the year ended 31 March 2014 to approximately 2.3% for
the year ended 31 March 2015 due to the increase in our gross
profit margin during the year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Cont'd)

EERERNwm L&)

Liquidity and Financial Resources

As of 31 March 2015, the Group had cash and cash equivalents of
HK$143.7 million representing a decrease of 13.7% from
approximately HK$166.6 million as of 31 March 2014. The Group did
not have pledged deposits at 31 March 2015 and 2014. The
decrease in cash and cash equivalents during the year was mainly
due to effects of (i) net cash outflow from operating activities of
approximately HK$21.8 million; and (ii) purchase of property, plant
and equipment of approximately HK$2.3 million.

The Group’s cash and cash equivalents were denominated in Hong
Kong dollars.

When compared with the Group’s financial position as at 31 March
2014, net current assets increased by 6.4% to approximately
HK$223.1 million (2014: HK$209.6 million) and net assets increased
by 7.5% to approximately HK$226.1 million (2014: HK$210.3 million)
as at 31 March 2015.

Current ratio is calculated by dividing current assets by current
liabilities. Current ratio of the Group was maintained at a healthy
level at 2.5 times as at 31 March 2015 (2014: 1.8 times).

Gearing ratio is calculated based on the amount of total interest-
bearing bank loans divided by the total equity. As the Group had no
bank loan as at 31 March 2015, the Group’s gearing ratio was
therefore 0% (2014: 0%) as at 31 March 2015.

As at 31 March 2015, the Group had aggregate banking facilities of
HK$189,000,000 which was not utilised. As at 31 March 2015, the
banking facilities were secured by (i) unlimited corporate guarantees
from the Company; (i) corporate guarantees from the Company
amounted to HK$130,000,000 (2014: HK$90,000,000); and (iii) the
assignment of the Group’s accounts receivable under certain contract
works with an aggregate amount of approximately HK$86,161,000
(2014: HK$92,558,000).

Contingent Liabilities
Details of the Group’s and the Company’s contingent liabilities are set
out in note 27 to the financial statements.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Cont’d)

TEEMm NN (E)

As of 31 March 2015, the Group employed approximately 424
employees (2014: 315) in Hong Kong. The Group remunerates its
employees based on their performance and work experience and with
reference to the prevailing market conditions. Staff benefits include
mandatory provident fund and training programmes.

The Board does not recommend the payment of final dividend for
the year ended 31 March 2015 (2014: Nil).
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management
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Executive Directors

Mr. Li Chi Pong, aged 58, is an executive Director and the Chief
Executive Officer of our Company. Mr. Li is currently a director of
each subsidiary of our Group. Mr. Li is responsible for the overall
business development, management and operation of our Group. He
graduated from the Hong Kong Polytechnic with a Higher Diploma in
Civil Engineering in November 1979 and joined Excel Engineering
Company Limited (“Excel”) (a wholly owned subsidiary of our
Company) in the same year. He has worked in the construction
industry for over 30 years and gained extensive experience in the
executive role in construction companies. He is the Authorised
Signatory of Excel as Registered Specialist Contractors (foundation
works) and (formation works) and Registered General Building
Contractor of the Buildings Department. Mr. Li was a member of the
Contractors Registration Committee Panel from January 2009 to
December 2012. Mr. Li is also a Council Member of the Hong Kong
Construction Association.

Mr. Poon Yan Min, aged 53, is an executive Director of our
Company, responsible for our Group’s implementation of works and
the overall management of contracts. Mr. Poon is currently a director
of each subsidiary of our Group. Mr. Poon obtained a Bachelor of
Science Degree in Engineering from the University of Hong Kong in
November 1986 and a Master of Science Degree in Engineering
Management from City University of Hong Kong in November 2002.
He is a corporate member of the Hong Kong Institution of Engineers
("HKIE") and a Registered Professional Engineer (Civil). He has over
25 years of experience in the construction of roads and drainage, site
formation, waterworks and building works including over 10 years in
Excel, and 9 years in Mass Transit Railway Corporation as
Construction Engineer from 1995 to 2004, responsible for supervision
of various railway construction projects, including the Lantau and
Airport project, Tseung Kwan O extension project and the Mei Foo
Station Interchange for the West Rail Interface Works. He is the
Authorised Signatory for Excel as Registered General Building
Contractor of the Buildings Department. He is also an Engineering
Supervisor for Excel in the HKIE Engineering Graduate Training
(Scheme A) for graduate engineers.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management (Cont'd)

EELREREEEBRE(E)

Non-executive Director

Mr. Yau Kwok Fai, aged 49, is the Chairman and a non-executive
Director of our Company and is responsible for the overall planning
and formulation of strategic directions and provision of operation
guidance of our Group. Mr. Yau has been a member of the board of
directors of Vantage, the then controlling shareholder before the
completion of Share Sale, since 2000 and currently is the Deputy
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of Vantage. Mr. Yau has over
20 years of experience in the construction industry. Mr. Yau
graduated with Bachelor Degree of Engineering in Civil Engineering
(First Class Honours) from the Hong Kong Polytechnic in November
1990. He obtained a Diploma of the Imperial College from the
Imperial College London in July 1991 and a Master of Science Degree
with Distinction in Structural Steel Design from University of London
in August 1991. He is a Chartered Engineer and a corporate member
of the Institution of Civil Engineers, the Institution of Structural
Engineers and the HKIE, a Registered Professional Engineer (Civil &
Structural) and a Registered Structural Engineer. Mr. Yau and Mr.
Ngai Chun Hung, an executive director and the Chairman of Vantage,
are brothers-in-law.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Dr. Law Kwok Sang, aged 71, is an independent non-executive
Director of our Company. Dr. Law is currently the Adjunct Professor
of the Department of Civil Engineering, University of Hong Kong and
Zhengzhou University, PRC. Dr. Law obtained a Bachelor Degree in
Engineering in November 1967 and a Master Degree of Philosophy in
October 1977 from the University of Hong Kong. He also obtained a
Doctorate Degree in Education in December 2001 from the University
of Durham, UK. He is a Fellow of the HKIE, the Institution of
Structural Engineers, UK and the Institution of Civil Engineers, UK, an
Authorised Person (Engineer), a Registered Structural Engineer and a
Class 1 Registered Structural Engineer of PRC.

Dr. Law was the Chairman of the Authorised Person/Registered
Structural Engineer/Registered Geotechnical Engineer Committee from
2007 to 2010.

Dr. Law has been a Member of the Disciplinary Board (Lifts and
Escalators (Safety) Ordinance (Cap. 327)) and a Member of the
Building Safety Loan Scheme Vetting Committee and the Appeal
Board Panel (Amusement Rides (Safety)). He was also a Member of
the Geotechnical Engineers Registration Committee Panel from 2004
to 2006 and a Member of the Planning Sub-committee of the Land
and Development Advisory Committee from 2009 to 2012. He has
also been a Member of the Authorised Persons Registration
Committee Panel since 2012.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management (Cont'd)

EEeREREEBERE(E)

Independent Non-executive Directors (Contd)

Dr. Law was presented the A.E. Wynn Prize in 1973 in recognition of
his performance in the Chartered Membership Examination of the
Institution of Structural Engineers, UK.

Professor Patrick Wong Lung Tak, 885, /P, aged 67, is an
independent non- executive Director of our Company. He is a
Certified Public Accountant (Practising) in Hong Kong and the
Managing Practising Director of Patrick Wong CPA Limited. He has
over 40 years of experience in the accountancy profession. Professor
Wong holds a Doctor of Philosophy in Business degree, was awarded
a Badge of Honour by the Queen of England in 1993 and was
appointed a Justice of the Peace in 1998. He was also awarded a
Bronze Bauhinia Star by the Government of the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region in 2010. He was appointed Adjunct Professor,
School of Accounting and Finance of the Hong Kong Polytechnic
University from 2002 to 2013. Professor Wong is an independent
non-executive director of Galaxy Entertainment Group Limited, China
Precious Metal Resources Holdings Co., Ltd.,, C.C. Land Holdings
Limited, Water Oasis Group Limited, Sino Oil and Gas Holdings
Limited, Real Nutriceutical Group Limited, Guangzhou Baiyunshan
Pharmaceutical Holdings Company Limited, National Arts
Entertainment and Culture Group Limited, Winox Holdings Limited
and BAIC Motor Corporation Limited, all are listed on the Stock
Exchange.

Ms. Mak Suk Hing, aged 62, is an independent non-executive
Director of our Company. Ms. Mak obtained a Bachelor Degree in
Science in October 1975 and a Diploma of Education in December
1980, both from the Chinese University of Hong Kong. She was the
principal of Tai Po Government Secondary School from 1997 to 2000
and the principal of South Tuen Mun Government Secondary School
from 2000 to 2008. Ms. Mak is currently the Assessor for Needs
Analysis for Aspiring Principals Programme in the Chinese University
of Hong Kong. Ms. Mak is also a member of the Executive
Committee and a permanent member of Rural Training College
Alumni Association Limited. She is a member of New Territories East
Region of the Scout Association of Hong Kong. She was also a
committee member of the School Management Committee of the
Clementi Secondary School from September 2011 to August 2013.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management (Cont'd)
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Mr. Lai Kon Ting, aged 35, is the Contracts Manager of our Group,
responsible for implementation of works and the overall management
of contracts. Mr. Lai obtained a Bachelor Degree in Civil and
Structural Engineering in November 2001 from the Hong Kong
University of Science and Technology. He is a Chartered Engineer of
Engineering Council, United Kingdom and a corporate member of the
Institution of Civil Engineers and the HKIE as well as a Registered
Professional Engineer (Civil). He has over 10 years of experience in
the construction of roads and utilities works, landslip prevention,
waterworks and building works. He is also a Tutor for Excel in the
HKIE Engineering Graduate Training (Scheme A) for graduate
engineers.

Mr. Wong Kin Sang, aged 35, is the Project Manager of our Group,
responsible for all activities on site to ensure the efficient running of
a project and effective use of resources. Mr. Wong obtained a
Bachelor Degree in Civil and Structural Engineering in November
2002 from the Hong Kong University of Science and Technology. He
is a corporate member of the HKIE. He has over 10 years of
experience in the construction of waterworks, roads and utilities
works, landslip prevention and building works. He is also a Tutor for
Excel in the HKIE Engineering Graduate Training (Scheme A) for
graduate engineers.

Mr. Wong Kin Yan, aged 45, is the Environmental and Quality
Manager of our Group, responsible for the implementation and
maintenance of our Group's environmental and quality management
systems. Mr. Wong obtained a Bachelor Degree in Applied Science in
December 1994 from Hong Kong Baptist University. He is a
Chartered Environmentalist and a corporate member of the Society of
Environmental Engineers. He has over 15 years of experience in the
environmental and quality management in the construction field. He
is the Management Representative of Excel’'s ISO 9001 Quality
Management System and ISO 14001 Environmental Management
System.

Mr. Liu Shiu Yuen, aged 35, is the Financial Controller and Company
Secretary of the Company. Mr. Liu obtained a Bachelor Degree of
Arts (Hons) in Accountancy in November 2002 from The Hong Kong
Polytechnic University. He has over 10 years of accounting, auditing
and related experience. Mr. Liu is a fellow member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
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Corporate Governance Report
rtEERHSE

The Group is committed to maintaining high standards of corporate
governance to safeguard the interests of Shareholders and to
enhance corporate value and accountability. The Company has
adopted the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) contained
in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) since 11 December 2013, the
date on which dealings in the Shares first commence on the Stock
Exchange (the “Listing Date”).

For the year ended 31 March 2015, the Company has complied with
the code provisions set out in the CG Code with the following
exception:

Under Code Provision A.6.7, independent non-executive directors and
other non-executive directors should attend general meetings and
develop a balanced understanding of the views of the shareholders.

For the annual general meeting of the Company held on 15 August
2014, the whole Board of Directors and auditors of the Company
have attended the meeting to ensure an effective communication
with the shareholders at that meeting except that Professor Patrick
Wong Lung Tak, 8.8.S., J.P. (Independent Non-executive Director and
Chairman of Audit Committee) was unable to attend the annual
general meeting due to unavoidable business commitment.

The Company regularly reviews its corporate governance practices to
ensure they comply with the CG Code and align with the latest
developments.

Responsibilities of the Board

The Board is responsible for the overall leadership of the Group,
oversees the strategic decisions and monitors business and
performance of the Group. The Board has delegated the authority
and responsibility for day-to-day management and operation of the
Group to the senior management of the Group. Approval has to be
obtained from the Board prior to any significant transactions entered
into by the management. To oversee particular aspects of the
Company'’s affairs, the Board has established three Board committees
including the audit committee (the “Audit Committee”), the
remuneration committee (the “Remuneration Committee”) and the
nomination committee (the “Nomination Committee”) (together, the
“Board Committees”). The Board has delegated to the Board
Committees responsibilities as set out in their respective terms of
reference.
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Corporate Governance Report (Cont’d)
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Responsibilities of the Board (Contd)

All Directors shall ensure that they carry out duties in good faith, in
compliance with applicable laws and regulations, and in the interests
of the Company and the Shareholders at all times.

Board Composition

As at 31 March 2015, the Board is composed of six Directors,
including two executive Directors, a non-executive Director and three
independent non-executive Directors. The biographical details of the
directors are set out in the section headed “Biographical Details of
Directors and Senior Management” on pages 15 to 17 of this annual
report.

For the year ended 31 March 2015, the Board at all times met the
requirements of the Rules 3.10(1) and 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules
relating to the appointment of at least three independent non-
executive Directors with at least one independent non-executive
Director possessing appropriate professional qualifications or
accounting or related financial management expertise.

The Company has also complied with Rule 3.10A of the Listing Rules
relating to the appointment of independent non-executive Directors
representing at least one-third of the Board.

The Board has assessed the independence of all the independent
non-executive Directors of the Company. Having considered the
guidelines as set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules, the Board
considers all of them to be independent having regard to (i) their
annual confirmation on independence as required under the Listing
Rules; (i) the absence of involvement in the daily management of the
Company; and (iii) the absence of any relationships or circumstances
which would interfere with the exercise of their independent
judgment; and (iv) the absence of remuneration from the Company
other than the directors’ fee.

All Directors, including independent non-executive Directors, have
brought a wide spectrum of valuable business experience, knowledge
and professionalism to the Board for its efficient and effective
functioning. All Directors have separate and independent access to
the advices and services of the senior management and the company
secretary with a view to ensuring that board procedures, and all
applicable rules and regulations, are followed. When needed and
upon making request to the Board, the independent non-executive
Directors may obtain independent professional advice at the
Company’s expense in carrying out their duties.
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Board Composition (Contd)

Saved as disclosed in the “Biographical Details of Directors and
Senior Management” section of this annual report, there are no
relationships (including financial, business, family or other material or
relevant relationships) among members of the Board, in particular
between the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The Company fully supports the division of responsibility between the
Chairman of the Board and the Chief Executive Officer to ensure a
balance of power and authority. The position of the Chairman is held
by Mr. Yau Kwok Fai while the position of Chief Executive Officer is
held by Mr. Li Chi Pong during the year ended 31 March 2015. The
roles and division of responsibilities between the Chairman and the
Chief Executive Officer have been clearly established.

During the year ended 31 March 2015, the Chairman has met with
non-executive Directors (including independent non-executive
Directors) without the executive Directors present.

Directors’ Training and Continuous Professional
Development

Every Director keeps abreast of responsibilities as a director of the
Company and of the conduct, business activities and development of
the Company. The Company continuously updates the Directors on
the Group’s businesses and the latest developments regarding the
Listing Rules and other applicable regulatory requirements, to ensure
compliance and enhance their awareness of good corporate
governance practices.

According to the Code Provision A.6.5 of the CG Code, all Directors
should participate in continuous professional development to develop
and refresh their knowledge and skills to ensure that their
contribution to the board remains informed and relevant.

The Company has requested from each director and maintained their
records of training received during the year end 31 March 2015.
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Directors’ Training and Continuous Professional

Development (Contd)

During the year ended 31 March 2015,

Directors pursued

continuous professional development and relevant details are set out

below:

Name of Directors

EEnA

Executive Directors:
Mr. Li Chi Pong
Mr. Poon Yan Min

Non-Executive Director:
Mr. Yau Kwok Fai

Independent Non-Executive Directors:
Dr. Law Kwok Sang

Professor Patrick Wong Lung Tak

Ms. Mak Suk Hing

Remarks:

A — Attending seminars/conferences/forums

B — Reading journals/updates/articles/materials

EERIIRBEERRR(A)
RBE-_T-—RAF=A=+—BILFERN FEE

EEEL2EBEEERR  LKGBBEER MM
T
Types of training
3= 51 8 B
HITES:
FaFEE A,
R E A A,
FHITES:
BB 5T A A, B
BYFHTES:
EEAIEL A,
EREBRAR A,
2R 22 £
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Appointment and Re-election of Directors

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service contract
with the Company on 21 November 2013 for a term of three years
commencing from the Listing Date and may be terminated in
accordance with the respective terms of the service contracts. They
are also subject to retirement and re-election at annual general
meeting of the Company in accordance with the Articles of
Association of the Company (“Articles”).

The non-executive Director has signed a letter of appointment with
the Company on 21 November 2013 for a term of three years
commencing from the Listing Date. The appointment is subject to the
provisions of retirement and rotation of Directors under the Articles.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has signed a letter
of appointment with the Company on 21 November 2013, for an
initial term of two years commencing from the Listing Date. The
appointments are subject to the provisions of retirement and rotation
of Directors under the Articles.

According to the Articles, the Board has the power at any time to
appoint any person as a Director either to fill a casual vacancy or as
an additional Director. Any Director appointed by the Board to fill a
casual vacancy shall hold office until the first general meeting of the
Company after his appointment and be subject to re-election at such
meeting. Any Director appointed by the Board as an addition to the
existing Board shall hold office only until the next following annual
general meeting of the Company and shall then be eligible for re-
election. Besides, at every annual general meeting, one-third of the
Directors for the time being, or if their number is not a multiple of
three, the number nearest to but not less than one-third, shall retire
from office by rotation provided that every Director shall be subject
to retirement at an annual general meeting at least once every three
years.

The procedures and process of appointment, re-election and removal
of Directors are set out in the Articles. The Nomination Committee is
responsible for reviewing the Board composition, monitoring the
appointment, re-election and succession planning of Directors.
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Meetings

Code Provision A.1.1 prescribes that at least four regular board
meetings should be held in each year at approximately quarterly
intervals with active participation of majority of Directors, either in
person or through electronic means of communication.

The Company convened and held four regular Board meetings during
the year ended 31 March 2015.

Additional Board meetings will be convened, as and when required,
to deal with ad hoc issues. Any Director who is not able to present
physically may participate at any Board meeting through electronic
means of communication, such as conference telephone or other
similar communication equipment, in accordance with the Articles.

Notice convening each regular Board meeting is sent at least 14 days
in advance, and reasonable notice is given for other Board meetings
and committee meetings. The Company Secretary assists the
Chairman to prepare the meeting notice and agenda. Each Director
may include any item in the agenda. The agenda, accompanied by
meeting papers with sufficient and reliable information, are sent to
each Director at least 3 days before each Board meeting or
committee meeting to enable the Directors to make informed
decisions on the matters to be discussed, except where a Board
meeting or committee meeting is convened on a very urgent basis to
consider any urgent ad hoc matter.

The Company Secretary is responsible for taking and keeping minutes
of all Board meetings and committee meetings. Draft minutes will
normally be circulated to Directors for comment within a reasonable
time after each meeting and the final version is open for Directors’
inspection.
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Meetings (Cont’d) & (E)

During the year ended 31 March 2015, four regular Board meetings, MREBE-ZT—AF=A=+—HILFE  H&E70
three Audit Committee meetings, two Remuneration Committee NXNEHEEEEH " ANEXZEESEH  MNX
meetings, one Nomination Committee meeting and the 2013/14 FHMZE € &% —KIERZECSEN_T—

annual general meeting (“AGM") were held. Details of individual =/ /—WERERAFAS(BRRBFAE]) - F
Directors’ attendance at these meetings are set out in the following BRI EEHEZESENFBEHI O T
table:

Attended/Eligible to attend

EHEREHHERE
Directors Regular Audit Remuneration Nomination
Board Committee Committee Committee
Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting AGM
= E 8 #F i R’RE BR=R

EExg88 ZE983 ZEE2g9#E ZEgg83 BFEKY

Executive Directors BITES

Mr. Li Chi Pong FRMBEE 4/4 N/A 2/2 N/A 171
5@ A 58 A

Mr. Poon Yan Min EEREAE 4/4 N/A N/A N/A 71
i@ A i@ A i@ A

Non-executive Director FHITES

Mr. Yau Kwok Fai e B R S 4/4 N/A N/A 171 171
58 B 38

Independent Non-executive Directors BUKHTES

Dr. Law Kwok Sang EEAEEL 4/4 3/3 2/2 11 11

Professor Patrick Wong Lung Tak, B.B.S., J.P & Be{E# % 4/4 3/3 2/2 Vil Note

(EHFALE  KAF#T) M
Ms. Mak Suk Hing 2RI &+ a/4 3/3 2/2 171 171

Note: Professor Patrick Wong Lung Tak, B.B.S., J.P (Independent Non-executive — fif3 - SEEEHE  HELHEZ L T4+ (B 3EH

Director and Chairman of Audit Committee) was unable to attend the TEERERZESEIR)ENRELZBEORK
AGM due to unavoidable business commitment. RAMAGELFERRBFRE -

N/A:  Not applicable
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Model Code for Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) set out
in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules. Specific enquiries have been
made to all the Directors and the Directors have confirmed that they
have complied with the Model Code during the year ended 31
March 2015.

The Company’'s employees, who are likely to be in possession of
inside information of the Company, have also subjected to the Model
Code for securities transactions. No incident of non-compliance of
the Model Code by the employees was noted by the Company.

Remuneration of Directors and Senior Management
The Company has established a formal and transparent procedure for
formulating policies on remuneration of Directors and senior
management of the Group. Details of the remuneration of each of
the Directors for the year ended 31 March 2015 are set out in note
8 to the financial statements.

The biographies of the senior management are disclosed in the
section headed “Biographical Details of Directors and Senior
Management” in this annual report. Remuneration paid to the senior
management (excluding the Directors) for the year ended 31 March
2015 is within the range of HK$800,000 to HK$1,500,000.

Directors’ Liability Insurance

The Company purchases annually the Directors’ and officers’ liability
insurance for members of the Board. The insurance cover is reviewed
annually to ensure that the Directors and officers are adequately
protected against potential liabilities.

The Board has set up three Board Committees, namely, the Audit
Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination
Committee, to oversee particular aspects of the Company’s affairs.
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Audit Committee

The Audit Committee was established in compliance with Rules 3.21
and 3.22 of the Listing Rules and Code Provision C.3.3 of the CG
Code.

The full terms of reference of the Audit Committee are available on
the Stock Exchange’s website and the Company’s website.

As at 31 March 2015, the Audit Committee is made up of three
independent non-executive Directors, namely Professor Patrick Wong
Lung Tak, B.8.S., J.P, Dr. Law Kwok Sang and Ms. Mak Suk Hing.
Professor Patrick Wong Lung Tak, B.8.5., J.P, is the Chairman of the
Audit Committee. Professor Patrick Wong Lung Tak, B.8.S., /P, is a
certified public accountant and possesses the appropriate accounting
qualifications and experiences in financial matters.

The Audit Committee meets at least twice annually and also meets
with the Company’s external auditor at least twice annually to
discuss the audit plan and to review the Company’s annual report
and accounts. During the year ended 31 March 2015, the Audit
Committee held three meetings.

The primary duties of the Audit Committee include, but not limited
to:

o make recommendation to the Board on the appointment,
reappointment and removal of the external auditor, and to
approve the remuneration and terms of engagement of the
external auditor, and any questions of the resignation or the
dismissal of that auditor;

o review and monitor the external auditor’'s independence and
objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process and
reporting obligations in accordance with applicable standards;

o discuss with the auditors the nature and scope of the audit and
reporting obligations before the audit commences;

o develop and implement policy on engaging an external auditor
to supply non-audit services;

o act as the key representative body for overseeing the Company’s
relations with the external auditor;
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Audit Committee (Contd)

o monitor the integrity of financial statements of the Company
and the Company’s annual report and accounts, half-year
report and, if prepared for publication, quarterly reports, and
to review significant financial reporting judgements contained
in them;

o review arrangements employees of the Company can use, in
confidence to raise concerns about possible improprieties in
financial reporting, internal control or other matters;

o review the Company’s financial controls, internal control and risk
management systems;

o discuss the internal control system with management to ensure
that management has performed its duties to have an effective
internal control system;

o review the Group’s financial and accounting policies and
practices; and

o review the external auditor’'s management letter, any material
queries raised by the auditor to management about accounting
records, financial accounts or systems of control and
management’s response.

Audit Committee also reviewed final results of the Company and its
subsidiaries for the year ended 31 March 2015 as well as the audit
report prepared by the external auditor relating to accounting issues
and major findings in course of audit.
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Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee was established in compliance with
Rules 3.25 and 3.26 of the Listing Rules and Code Provision B.1.2 of
the CG Code.

The full terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are
available on the Stock Exchange's website and the Company's
website.

As at 31 March 2015, the Remuneration Committee is made up of
three independent non-executive Directors, namely Dr. Law Kwok
Sang, Professor Patrick Wong Lung Tak, B.8.5., J.P, and Ms. Mak Suk
Hing and one executive Director, namely Mr. Li Chi Pong. Dr. Law
Kwok Sang is the Chairman of the Remuneration Committee.

The Remuneration Committee meets at least once a year to review
the remuneration of Directors and make recommendations to the
Board. During the year ended 31 March 2015, two meetings of the
Remuneration Committee were held.

The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee include, but not
limited to:

o make recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy
and structure for the remuneration packages of Directors and
senior management;

o determine with delegated responsibility the remuneration
packages of individual Directors and senior management;

o review and approve compensation payable to executive Directors
and senior management for any loss or termination of office;
and

J review and approve compensation arrangements relating to

dismissal or removal of Directors for misconduct.
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Nomination Committee
The Nomination Committee was established in compliance with Code
Provision A.5.1 and A.5.2 of the CG Code.

The full terms of reference of the Nomination Committee are
available on the Stock Exchange's website and the Company's
website.

As at 31 March 2015, the Nomination Committee is made up of
three independent non-executive Directors, namely Dr. Law Kwok
Sang, Professor Patrick Wong Lung Tak, B.8.5., J.P, and Ms. Mak Suk
Hing and one non-executive Director, namely Mr. Yau Kwok Fai. Mr.
Yau Kwok Fai is the Chairman of the Nomination Committee.

The Nomination Committee will be held at least once a year. During
the year ended 31 March 2015, one meeting of the Nomination
Committee was held.

The primary duties of the Nomination Committee include, but not
limited to:

. review the structure, size, composition and diversity (including
the skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board at least
annually and make recommendations to the Board in order to
maintain an appropriate range and balance of skills, knowledge
and experience of the Board;

o identify individuals suitably qualified to become Directors and
select or make recommendations to the Board on the selection
of, individuals nominated for directorships. In identifying
suitable candidates, a range of diversity perspectives with
reference to the Company’s business model and specific needs
will be considered, including but not limited to gender, age,
culture, race, educational background, professional experience,
knowledge and skills;

o assess the independence of independent non-executive
Directors;

o make recommendations to the Board on the appointment or re-
appointment of Directors and succession planning for Directors;
and

o conform to any requirement, direction, and regulation that may

from time to time be prescribed by the Board or contained in
the constitution of the Company or imposed by the Listing
Rules or applicable law.
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The Board is responsible for, amongst other things, the development
and review of the policies and practices on corporate governance of
the Group and monitoring the compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements, reviewing and monitoring the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior management, and
reviewing the corporate governance compliance with the Code
Provisions and disclosure in the annual report.

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
financial statements of the Company and of the Group for the year
ended 31 March 2015, which give a true and fair view of the state
of affairs of the Company and of the Group on a going concern
basis. The Board is provided with explanations and information by the
senior management of the Company, so that the Directors have

an informed assessment of the financial and other information of the
Group putting forward to the Board for discussion and approval.

To the best of the Directors’ knowledge, there is no uncertainty
relating to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.

The external auditors of the Company acknowledge their reporting
responsibilities in their independent auditors’ report on the financial
statements for the year ended 31 March 2015 as set out in the
Independent Auditors’ Report on pages 49 to 50.

In respect of the year ended 31 March 2015, the remuneration paid
and payable to the Company’s external auditors, Ernst & Young, is set
out below:
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The Board acknowledges that it is the responsibility of the Board for
maintaining an adequate internal control system to safeguard
Shareholders investments and the Company’s assets and reviewing
the effectiveness of such system on an annual basis. The Board has
entrusted the Audit Committee with the responsibility to review the
internal control systems of the Group, which include financial,
operational and compliance controls and risk management aspects of
the Group.

During the year under review, the Board has conducted review on the
effectiveness of the internal control system of the Group through
discussion with the Audit Committee on audit findings and control
issues. These procedures provide reasonable, but not absolute,
assurance against material errors, losses and fraud, and manage
rather than eliminate risks of failure in the Group’s operational
systems and in the achievement of the Group’s business objectives.

The Board has also considered the adequacy of resources,
qualifications and experience of staff of the Company’s accounting
and financial reporting function, and their training programs.

Mr. Liu Shiu Yuen (“Mr. Liu”), the Company Secretary appointed by
the Board, is a full-time employee of the Group; and in the opinion
of the Board, possesses the necessary qualifications and experience,
and is capable of performing the functions of a company secretary.
Mr. Liu is the secretary of the Board and the various Board
Committees including Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee
and Nomination Committee. Mr. Liu is also the Financial Controller of
the Group.

During the year ended 31 March 2015, Mr. Liu has complied with
Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules by taking no less than 15 hours of
relevant professional training.
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The Company considers that effective communication with
Shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations and
understanding of the Group’s business, performance and strategies.
The Company also recognises the importance of timely disclosure of
information, which will enable Shareholders and investors to make
the informed investment decisions. The various channels via which the
Company communicates with its Shareholders include interim and
annual reports, information on the websites of the Stock Exchange
and the Company, annual general meeting and other general
meeting that may be convened.

The annual general meeting of the Company provides opportunity for
Shareholders to communicate directly with the Directors. The
Chairman of the Board and the Chairman of the Board Committees
of the Company will attend the annual general meeting to answer
Shareholders’ questions. The external auditor of the Company will
also attend the annual general meeting to answer questions about
the conduct of the audit, the preparation and contents of the
auditors’ report, the accounting policies and auditor independence.

To safeguard Shareholders’ interests and rights, a separate resolution
will be proposed for each substantial issue at general meetings,
including the election of individual Directors.

All resolutions put forward at general meetings will be voted on by
poll pursuant to the Listing Rules and poll results will be posted on
the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company after each
general meeting.

Shareholders should direct their enquiries about their shareholdings
to the Company’s Hong Kong branch share registrar and transfer
office, namely, Tricor Investor Services Limited at Level 22, Hopewell
Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong. Shareholders who wish
to put enquiries to the Board can send their enquiries to the
Company Secretary of the Company who will ensure these enquiries
to be properly directed to the Board. Shareholders may at any time
make a request for the Company’s information to the extent such
information is publicly available.
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Convening of Extraordinary General Meetings and
Putting Forward Proposals

In accordance with the Articles, an extraordinary general meeting
shall be convened on the requisition of one or more Shareholders
holding, at the date of deposit of the requisition, not less than one
tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the right of
voting at general meetings of the Company.

Such requisition shall be made in writing to the Board or the
Company Secretary of the Company for the purpose of requiring an
extraordinary general meeting to be called by the Board for the
transaction of any business specified in such requisition. Such
meeting shall be held within 2 months after the deposit of such
requisition.

If within twenty-one days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed
to convene such meeting the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may
do so in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by
the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be
reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

As regards proposing a person for election as a Director, the
procedures are available on the website of the Company.

There was no amendment made to the memorandum and articles of
association of the Company during the year ended 31 March 2015.
The latest version of the constitutional documents of the Company is
available on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

For details, “Report of the

Director

please refer to the section headed
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Report of the Directors
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The Directors of Excel Development (Holdings) Limited are pleased to
present their report together with the audited consolidated financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2015.

The principal activities of the Company are investment holding and
the provision of corporate management services. During the year
ended 31 March 2015, the Company’s principal subsidiaries were
engaged in civil engineering works and building construction and
maintenance.

There were no significant changes in the nature of the Group's
principal activities during the year.

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2015 are set
out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on page 51 of the annual report.

The Board does not recommend the payment of final dividend for
the year ended 31 March 2015 (2014: Nil).

A summary of the published results and of the assets and liabilities
of the Group for the last five financial years ended 31 March 2015 is
set out on page 3 of this annual report.

The net proceeds from the listing of the Company (after deducting
the underwriting commission and other expenses in relation to the
share offering) amounted to approximately HK$47 million. As at 31
March 2015, the Group has used up all the net proceeds in
accordance with the proposed usage set out in the section headed
"Future plans and use of proceeds” of the prospectus of the
Company dated 28 November 2013.
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Major Customers

During the vyear ended 31 March 2015, the largest customer
accounted for approximately 49.3% (2014: 57.0%) of the Group's
total revenues. The five largest customers accounted for
approximately 94.6% (2014: 99.1%) of the Group’s total revenues for
the year ended 31 March 2015.

Due to the nature of the business sector in which our Group is
engaged, our customer base is relatively concentrated to
organisations requiring civil engineering construction services,
generally including certain departments of the Government, public
utilities companies and private organisations in Hong Kong.

None of our Directors or their respective associates or any
Shareholder (to the knowledge of our Directors) holding more than
5% of the Company’s issued share capital had any interest in the five
largest customers.

Major Suppliers

The Group five largest suppliers being its sub-contractors together
accounted for approximately 98.5% (2014: 95.1%) of the Group's
total sub-contracting fees charged to the Group for the year ended
31 March 2015. The largest sub-contractor accounted for
approximately 28.8% (2014: 56.5%) of the total sub-contracting fees
charged to the Group for the year ended 31 March 2015.

Able Contractors Limited (“Able Contractors”), an entity engaged in
building construction business is our largest sub-contractor, which is
a connected person of our Company by virtue of it being a wholly
owned-subsidiary of Vantage, one of our controlling shareholders
during the years ended 31 March 2015 and 2014.

As described in the section headed “Continuing Connected
Transactions” in this report, we sub-contracted a building
construction project in Tsuen Wan to Able Contractors.

As described in the section headed “Directors’ and Chief Executive's
Interests and Short Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares and
Debentures” in this report, Mr. Li Chi Pong, the executive Director of
the Company, and Mr. Yau Kwok Fai, the non-executive Director of
the Company and a director of Vantage, were interested in 0.32%
and 2.25% respectively in the issued share capital of Vantage which
indirectly owns 100% of the issued share capital of Able Contractors
as at 31 March 2015.
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Major Suppliers (Cont'd)

Other than as set out in the paragraph above, none of our Directors
or their associates or any Shareholders (to the knowledge of our
Directors) holding more than 5% of the Company’s issued share
capital had any interests in the five largest sub-contractors.

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the year are set out in note 14 to the financial
statements.

Details of movements in share capital of the Company during the
year are set out in note 25 to the financial statements.

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the Group
during the year are set out in note 26 to the financial statements
and in the consolidated statement of changes in equity, respectively.

The Company’s reserves available for distribution to Shareholders as
at 31 March 2015 amounted to approximately HK$84.5 million
(2014: HK$84.9 million).

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Articles or the
laws of Cayman Islands where the Company is incorporated, which
would oblige the Company to offer new shares to existing
Shareholders on a pro-rata basis.

Donations made by the Group during the year amounted to
HK$20,000 (2014: HK$20,000).

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities for the year ended
31 March 2015.
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Based on the information that is available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Company’s directors as at the date of
this annual report, the Company has maintained the prescribed
minimum public float under the Listing Rules.

The Directors who held office during the year and up to the date of
this annual report were:

Executive Directors
Mr. Li Chi Pong (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Poon Yan Min

Non-executive Director
Mr. Yau Kwok Fai (Chairman)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Dr. Law Kwok Sang

Professor Patrick Wong Lung Tak, B.8.5., J.P.

Ms. Mak Suk Hing

In accordance with the Articles, one-third of the Directors for the
time being (or if their number is not a multiple of three, the number
nearest to but not less than one-third) will retire from office by
rotation and will be eligible for re-election and re-appointment at
every annual general meeting, provided that every Director shall be
subject to retirement by rotation at an annual general meeting at
least once every three years.

Circular containing details of the Directors to be re-elected at the
forthcoming AGM of the Company will be despatched to the
Shareholders in due course.

Biographical details of the Directors and senior management of the
Group are set out on pages 15 to 18 of this annual report.
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Each of the independent non-executive Directors has confirmed their
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Board
considered all of the independent non-executive Directors to be
independent in accordance with Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

None of the Directors has a service contract which is not
determinable by the Group within one year without payment of
compensation (other than statutory compensation).

Other than those transactions disclosed in note 29 of the notes to
the financial statements and in the section “Continuing Connected
Transactions” below, no Director has any material interest, either
directly or indirectly, in any contract of significance to the Group's
business to which the Company, any of its subsidiaries, fellow
subsidiaries or its parent companies were a party subsisted at the end
of the year or at any time during the year ended 31 March 2015.

During the year, no Director was interested in any business apart
from the Company’'s business, which competes or is likely to
compete, either directly or indirectly, with the Company’s business
which is required to be disclosed pursuant to the Listing Rules.

Details of the emoluments of the Directors and the five highest paid
individuals are set out in notes 8 and 9 of the notes to the financial
statements in this annual report.
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Upon specific enquiry by the Company and following confirmations
from the Directors, save as disclosed in the section headed
“Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management” in this
annual report, there was no change in the information of the
Directors required to be disclosed pursuant to paragraphs (a) to (e)
and (g) of Rule 13.51(2) of the Listing Rules for the year ended 31
March 2015.

Details of changes in Directors’ particulars subsequent to 2014/15
interim report:

Professor Patrick Wong Lung Tak (an independent non-executive
Director) has been appointed as an independent non-executive
director of BAIC Motor Corporation Limited, a company listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 1958), with effect
from 2 December 2014.

As at 31 March 2015, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and chief executive in shares, underlying shares or
debentures of the Company or its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the
“SFO")) required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO
(including interest or short positions which they were taken or
deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO), or which would
be required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO; to be entered in the
register referred to therein, or which would be required to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Model
Code in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules were as follows:
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Long position in shares of the associated
corporation — Vantage

REBZEZERONERE — &BF

Approximate percentage
of shareholding in

Director Nature of interests Name and class of shares associated corporation

L B Y

BEx EatE RoOEBRER BARREI

Li Chi Pong Beneficial owner 5,501,200 ordinary shares 0.32%
aF EREAA 5,501,200 % 3 3@ %

Yau Kwok Fai Beneficial owner 8,448,000 ordinary shares 0.48%
B A BEHBERA 8,448,000 % & i A%

Interest in a controlled operation (note) 30,888,000 ordinary shares 1.77%

Xy RS (i)

Note: These shares are legally and beneficially owned by Business Success
Limited, the entire issued share capital of which is legally and
beneficially owned by Mr. Yau Kwok Fai.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2015, none of the Directors
or chief executive of the Company had registered an interest or a
short position in the shares or underlying shares or debentures of the
Company or its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part
XV of the SFO) which will be required to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of
the SFO (including interests and short positions which they were
taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO) or which
were required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in
the register referred to therein, or which were required, pursuant to
the Model Code, to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange.
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As at 31 March 2015, to the best of the Directors’ knowledge, the
interests and short positions of the person (other than the Directors
or chief executive of the Company) in the shares or underlying shares
of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company
under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO as
recorded in the register of substantial shareholders required to be

kept under section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

Long positions in the issued shares of the

Company

Name of shareholders

REREE

Vantage

a1=

Profit Chain Investments Limited

Winhale Ltd.

Braveway Limited

HSBC International Trustee Limited

ELHEKRELERAA

Mr. Ngai Chun Hung
BRIR IR A

Cai Jiangdong
BEIRSHE

Notes

lioga

(@)

(@)

(b)

(c)

(c)

(d)

Nature of interest

BEME

Interest in a controlled corporation
REEEER

Beneficial owner

BEmEAA

Interest in a controlled corporation
XA E

Interest in a controlled corporation
XA E R

Trustee
ZFEEA

Interest in a controlled corporation
REEEER

Beneficial owner

ESEEA

RAQABDERTRONER

RIB-RAF=A=+—H REFFH BER
AEERERITHRABIN
KB EGRIEBHRREREFHNTIERRECMH
Fral - M AT RARE MR ARRE B+ %
BUTREBEESRAEGRHIFEXVEBE2R37 B
NARMARAWENER XA

KEBARBRERE 5

Approximate

Number of

percentage of

ordinary issued share capital

shares held of the Company
FEEEER EARRBHT
R4 #E BRAEBHNBD L
150,000,000 75%
150,000,000 75%
150,000,000 75%
150,000,000 75%
150,000,000 75%
150,000,000 75%
12,400,000 6.2%
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Long positions in the issued shares of the Company
(Contd)

Notes:

(a) Profit Chain Investments Limited is wholly-owned by Vantage. As such,
Vantage is deemed to be interested in the 150,000,000 shares owned
by Profit Chain Investments Limited by virtue of the SFO.

(b) Winhale Ltd. is ultimately beneficially owned by the Xyston Trust, a
discretionary family trust set up by Mr. Ngai Chun Hung for the
benefits of himself and his family.

(c) Braveway Limited and HSBC International Trustee Limited are deemed
to be interested in the shares of Vantage held by Winhale Ltd. by
virtue of the fact that Winhale Ltd. is wholly owned by the trusts of
which Braveway Limited and HSBC International Trustee Limited are the
trustees.

(d) Mr. Ngai Chun Hung, is interested in 1,080,011,200 shares of Vantage,
which comprise 6,250,800 shares held by himself, the deemed interest
in 838,760,400 shares held by Winhale Ltd. and 235,000,000 shares
held by Fame Yield International Limited by virtue of his interest in the
entire issued share capital of Fame Yield International Limited and he
was the settlor and a beneficiary of the Xyston Trust.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2015, no person, other than
the Directors and chief executive of the Company whose interests are
set out in the section headed “Directors’ and Chief Executive's
Interests and Short Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares and
Debentures” above, had notified the Company of an interest or short
position in the shares or underlying shares of the Company that was
required to be recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company pursuant to section 336 of the SFO.
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RERREHRTRONEFR(E)

CEX

(a)
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Save as disclosed under the section headed “Directors’ and Chief
Executive’s Interests and Short Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares
and Debentures” above, at no time during the year ended 31 March
2015 were rights to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of
shares in or debentures of the Company granted to any Director or
his/her spouse or children under 18 years of age, or were any such
rights exercised by them; or was the Company, or any of its
subsidiaries, holding companies or fellow subsidiaries a party to any
arrangement to enable the directors to acquire such rights in any
other body corporate.

Details of the significant related party transactions undertaken in the
usual course of business are set out in note 29 to the financial
statements.

During the year ended 31 March 2015, the Group had the following
continuing connected transactions. Details are as follows:

Duration of agreement

[

Connected person

BMEAL

Able Contractors (note a)
2013

RAREE(H ita)

Frason Holdings Limited (note b)

BEERERAR M ZD)

E-T—=#+—FB-+—BH=%F

Three years commencing from 1 June 2013

-F-=H#xA-BEIH=E

BEXEERESTHRAENKRG - BERD
BEREZESNABIFAEEEI  REBEE-F—
FF=ZA=+"BULFEIERHENTEMNE
FEEFAZEBIRBTNARZTL  UBA
AARIRMBEEIEMEDRN D - RETFETE
ZEEN ARBHEEFAHEAR - ERARK
FAEMBARTES2EER Y USEFER
TREMEIABEESZSER -

ERREREBERTMETHNERNBETRS
AFIE R B RS AR M 5E29 o

RBE-Z-—HF=A=+—HLFE FAKEHED
ETTIRERERS - FBOT:

Nature of transaction

XREME

Three years commencing from 21 November Sub-contract of carcass works for a

building construction project in

Tsuen Wan
DE—BEUREENEFTRENETE
BETRE

Lease of office premises and car
parking spaces
HER DG IORERL
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note a.

Able Contractors, is a connected person of the Company by virtue of it being
a wholly owned subsidiary of Vantage, one of our controlling shareholders
during the year.

In the ordinary and usual course of business, Excel Engineering Company
Limited (“Excel”), the wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into
transaction with Able Contractors on normal commercial terms. Pursuant to
the sub-contracting agreement, Able Contractors shall provide sub-contracting
works for the building construction project in Tsuen Wan. Excel may (but is
not obliged to) provide certain staff as it may consider appropriate to assist or
supervise Able Contractors under the relevant project and in return, Able
Contractors would reimburse the Group based on the cost of the relevant
staff and the hours spent in accordance with the sub-contracting agreement.

During the year ended 31 March 2015, the sub-contracting fee to Able
Contractors amounted to approximately HK$158.1 million which did not
exceed the related annual cap while there was no reimbursement of staff cost
from Able Contractors during the year.

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the continuing
connected transactions and have confirmed that the continuing connected
transactions have been entered into (i) in the ordinary and usual course of
business of the Group; (ii) either on normal commercial terms or on terms no
less favourable than those available to/from independent third parties; and (iii)
in accordance with the relevant agreement governing them on terms that are
fair and reasonable and are in the interests of the Shareholders as a whole.

Ernst & Young, the Company’s auditor, was engaged to report on the Group's
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on
Assurance Engagements 3000 Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or
Reviews of Historical Financial Information and with reference to Practice
Note 740 Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under the
Hong Kong Listing Rules issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Ernst & Young have issued their unqualified letter containing
their findings and conclusions in respect of the continuing connected
transactions disclosed above by the Group in accordance with Rule 14A.38 of
the Listing Rules. A copy of the auditor’s letter has been provided by the
Company to the Stock Exchange.

Excel Development (Holdings) Limited
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note b:

Frason Holdings Limited (“Frason”), is a connected person of the Company by
virtue of it being a wholly owned subsidiary of Vantage, one of our
controlling shareholders during the year.

Frason and Excel entered into a tenancy agreement pursuant to which Frason
as Landlord agreed to lease to Excel the office premises at No. 155 Waterloo
Road, Kowloon Tong, Kowloon, Hong Kong and car parking spaces at a
monthly rent of HK$51,700 (exclusive of utility and other property related
miscellaneous expenses).

As the highest relevant percentage ratio in respect of this continuing
connected transaction, on an annual basis, is less than 5% and the annual
consideration is less than HK$3,000,000, this transaction was pursuant to
Rule 14A.33 of the Listing Rules constituted de minimis continuing connected
transactions exempt from the reporting, announcement, annual review and
independent shareholders’ approval requirements in Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.

Vantage, the controlling shareholder of the Company during the year,
entered into a Deed of Non-competition (the “Deed”) with the
Company on 21 November 2013. Pursuant to the Deed, Vantage
undertakes that the Retained Vantage Group will not, inter alia,
engage in civil engineering construction business and any business
that is or is likely to be in competition with that of the Group. For
details about the above-mentioned Deed, please refer to section
headed “Relationship with Controlling Shareholders” in our
prospectus dated 28 November 2013 for details.

Vanatge has confirmed to the Company of its compliance with the
Deed. The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the
status of compliance and confirmed that Vantage has not been in
breach of the non-competition undertaking during the year ended 31
March 2015.

The Company has applied the principles and Code Provisions as set
out in the CG Code contained in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules.
During the year ended 31 March 2015, save as disclosed in the
section headed “Corporate Governance Report”, the Company has
complied with the Code Provisions in the CG Code.

HiiEb

HREEERARAB(MEED RBEERMANFANE
BERzDNEZEMBAR - WHBERKRRR AR
BAL -

BEERSETTHEERR(TEERRD Bt - =B, E (E
REIIABEAREHEHEMCR T ENEEBITZE ISR
BV RIS P RORE R - A€ /51,7008 T (T EEKE
BLEMMERBHE) -

HRERERERFIBERER AL X RFEEERR
5% i A E T 23,000,000 7T © WiRE LR A
F1AA3ZME WX BB EBERIINRZENE @ &
FETEIMABBEUAENHREE 245 FEEHLE
B R ENRE -

RZB—=F+—-A=-+—B BEEMARFR
BRI R) B AR R RTINS FRIE(RE D) -
RERE BREAHBERESESTE (4L
FIRFLATRRZEXZBREMNREAKEEK
RAEBREFNER - BRREBEFE F2H
BAR—F—=F+—-A-t+/\BHENHRRERZ
[ B AR SRR — & o
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On 5 June 2015, subsequent to the balance sheet date:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

47

The Directors recommended the declaration and payment of a
special cash dividend of HK$50,000,000, representing HK$0.25
per ordinary share in the issued share capital of the Company,
out of the share premium account of the Company. The special
cash dividend is subject to the approval of the Company’s
shareholders at the forthcoming extraordinary general meeting.
Details of the event are disclosed in the announcement of the
Company dated 5 June 2015;

Vantage has disposed of its entire shareholding in the Company
to Youth Force Asia Ltd., a company incorporated in the British
Virgin Islands. Youth Force Asia Ltd. became the immediate and
ultimate holding company of the Company since then. Details
of the event are disclosed in the joint announcement of the
Company, Vantage and Youth Force Asia Ltd. dated 16 June
2015; and

Sureguard Limited, (“Sureguard”) a wholly-owned subsidiary of
Vantage, has entered into a loan agreement with Best Trader
International Limited (the “Best Trader”), a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company and pursuant to which Sureguard
agreed to make available an interest-free loan facility of
HK$50,000,000 to Best Trader for a term of 30 months (the
“Sureguard Loan”).

The Sureguard Loan will be secured by the share charge of
Great Jump Enterprises Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company and the holding company of Excel and Excel
Construction Development Limited (the “Share Charge”).

The Sureguard Loan and the Share Charge constitute special
deals under the Hong Kong Code on Takeovers and Mergers
which require consent of the Securities and Futures
Commission of Hong Kong and the approval from independent
shareholders of the Company at the forthcoming extraordinary
general meeting. Further details of the Sureguard Loan and the
Share Charge are set out in the joint announcement of the
Company, Vantage and Youth Force Asia Ltd. dated 16 June
2015.
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The register of members of the Company will be closed from 25
August 2015, Tuesday to 27 August 2015, Thursday (both days
inclusive) for the purpose of determining the right to attend and vote
at the annual general meeting, during which period no transfer of
shares will be registered. In order to be eligible to attend and vote at
the forthcoming annual general meeting, all share transfer documents
accompanied by the corresponding share certificates must be lodged
with the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor
Investor Services Limited at Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s
Road East, Hong Kong, for registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on
24 August 2015, Monday.

The Audit Committee has reviewed together with the management
and external auditor the accounting principles and policies adopted
by the Group, discussed internal controls and financial reporting
matters and the audited consolidated financial statements for the
year ended 31 March 2015.

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March
2015 have been audited by Ernst & Young.

Ernst & Young shall retire in the forthcoming annual general meeting
and, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-appointment. A
resolution for the re-appointment of Ernst & Young as auditor of the
Company will be proposed at the forthcoming annual general
meeting.

On behalf of the Board
Excel Development (Holdings) Limited
Yau Kwok Fai
Chairman and Non-executive Director

Hong Kong, 19 June 2015
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Independent Auditors’ Report
B Az BLAD R

EYzx

To the shareholders of Excel Development (Holdings) Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Excel
Development (Holdings) Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together, the “Group”) set out on pages 51 to 115, which comprise
the consolidated and company statements of financial position as at
31 March 2015, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes
in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information.

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and
for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit. Our report is made solely to
you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are
free from material misstatement.

Excel Development (Holdings) Limited
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Independent Auditors’ Report (Cont'd)
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditors
consider internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the
directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the financial position of the Company and of the Group
as at 31 March 2015, and of the Group’s financial performance and
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in
compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
22/F, CITIC Tower

1 Tim Mei Avenue

Central, Hong Kong

19 June 2015
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
FEEmMEMEER AR

Year ended 31 March 2015
BE-_F—AF=-HA=1+—HIFE

2015 2014
—E-HF —E—MmEF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
k=3 FET FET
REVENUE A 5 702,856 1,477,332
Contract costs PN (662,053) (1,417,169)
Gross profit EH 40,803 60,163
Other income and gains E AU A R U&= 5 3,163 7,481
Administrative expenses THRAX (24,875) (31,414)
Finance costs BiseE A 6 (39) (196)
PROFIT BEFORE TAX B B A% R 7 19,052 36,034
Income tax expense FriS M &2 1 10 (3.178) (7,638)
PROFIT AND TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE £ 3% Fl
INCOME FOR THE YEAR R2EKRARE 15,874 28,396
Profit and total comprehensive income & A& B A &5 & 7 &
attributable to owners of the parent TEKANEE 11 15,874 28,396
EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE & A F]
TO OWNERS OF THE PARENT HEEAEAS
BRERN
Basic and diluted (HK cents) EARREECEMN) 13 7.9 17.2

Details of dividend for the year are disclosed in note 12 to the ANFERBZFHFBHEERUVBEHREME2 -
financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

4T A

NN EZ'- %X Jl:lj( /El i%
31 March 2015
RZFE—AF=H=4+—H

NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Property, plant and equipment
Investment properties
Investment in a joint venture

Total non-current assets

CURRENT ASSETS

Gross amount due from customers for
contract works

Accounts receivable

Tax recoverable

Prepayments, deposits and other
receivables

Cash and cash equivalents

Total current assets

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Accounts payable

Accruals of costs for contract works
Other payables and accruals

Total current liabilities
NET CURRENT ASSETS

TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT
LIABILITIES

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Deferred tax liabilities

Net assets

EQUITY

Equity attributable to owners of the
parent

Issued capital

Reserves

Total equity

Li Chi Pong
Director
£}
=

Notes

B i

ERBEE

ME - BENRE 14
&ﬁ%% 15
R—HEaELENRE 17

FEREEEMRE

REBEE
EWE P/

EHTERAE 18
JE W BR 5K 19
TW@&E
BRRE - Ze

&E@%Wm 20
ReERBRESEED 21

REEERE

RBARE

JE& 51 BR 3R

BB TIEKA
HA @A R IERE M

mEBERE
RBEEZFEME

EEHRER
RBEME

FRBEE
ERERIAEE

BEFE

¥
BARERA
e 15 R 25
TR
ki

R

22

23

24

25
26(a)

2015
—E—-HF
HK$'000
FER

2,194
800

2,994

31,028
177,789
4,494

16,042
143,693
373,046

101,464
45,237
3,204

149,905
223,141

226,135

8
226,127

2,000
224,127

226,127

Poon Yan Min
Director
&R
E o
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2014
—meE
HK$'000
TAET

104
600

704

79,978
181,747
310

31,433
166,554
460,022

235,532
11,790
3,146

250,468
209,554

210,258

210,253

2,000
208,253

210,253
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in

HSE N/ 4

GAMNBDE

Year ended 31 March 2015
BE-_F—AF=-HA=1+—HIFE

Equity

Issued

capital

BRIT

[N

HK$'000

FHET

At 1 April 2013 R-_ZE—=FMA—H —
Profit and total comprehensive income FE R E A &

for the year 2HEHKABE —
Special dividend (note 12) BRI B (B aF12) —
Issue of new shares pursuant to the RIEEH

Reorganisation (note 25(a)) BT IR (KT 22 25(a) 500
Capitalisation Issue (note 25(b)) B AR EE 1T (B 7% 25(b) 1,000
Issue of new shares pursuant to the Share Offer 1R ¥ % (7 2% &

(note 25(c)) BT R D (K 2225(c) 500
Share issue expenses i BT X —
At 31 March 2014 and 1 April 2014 RZE—NF=A=+—BR

“ET-mMFEMA—A 2,000
Profit and total comprehensive income F R K&

for the year EHEWARRE —

At 31 March 2015 RZZE—RF=RA=+—H 2,000

reserves of
in the consolidated

* These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated
HK$224,127,000 (2014: HK$208,253,000)
statement of financial position.

Excel Development (Holdings) Limited
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TT) e

BAREEAENL
Share Merger Retained
premium reserve profits
IR A7 a5 18 OB RBEF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET TFERT
(note 26(b))
(1 iF26(b))
— 78 144,371
— — 28,396
— — (60,000)
45,501 (78) —
(1,000) — —
59,500 — —
(8,515) — —
95,486* —* 112,767*
— — 15,874
95,486*

Attributable to owners of the parent

Total
equity

wiER
HK$'000
TET

144,449

28,396
(60,000)

45,923

60,000
(8,515)

210,253

15,874

—* 128,641* 226,127

* hEFEBERERERGAVBRREPOLEEF
£5224,127,0007% Jt (= Z — Y 4F : 208,253,000/



Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
an\ fﬁ ~z ;/ZlLTJ % i‘%

Year ended 31 March 2015
BE2-_F—haF=-HA=1+—HIFE

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES K2 XKELNBELRE

Profit before tax B £ B v
Adjustments for: HTHIBEBEELAE:
Finance costs Y5 E R
Interest income FEdA
Depreciation e
Gain on disposal of items of property, plant HEWE  EEX
and equipment REBEENKE
Gain on changes in fair value of investment KEMERTE
properties Fayl e
Decrease in gross amount due from customers [EWEFMHAK T2 RERE
for contract works e
Decrease in accounts receivable JE U5 BR SRR

BRRE 2R
H A 18 WO,
& 1t BR OB 4
TEIR A #) TR R AN H0
H B+ 3R R FE HR B AR 0
JE 1t 22 {Z SR IR R A

Decrease in prepayments, deposits and other
receivables

Decrease in accounts payable

Increase in accruals of costs for contract works
Increase in other payables and accruals
Decrease in an amount due to Vantage

Cash used in operations KEFHANR S

Interest received 2 B

Interest paid A FLE

Hong Kong profits tax paid EREBNEH

Net cash flows used in KEXEBERY
operating activities RenhEFHE

Notes

loga

Uy

2015
—g-n%
HK$'000
857

19,052

39
(85)
204

(72)

(200)

18,938

48,950
3,958

14,195

(134,068)
33,447
58

(14,522)
85

(39)

(7.359)

(21,835)

2014

—T—U&

HK$'000
TAET

36,034

196
(287)
266

(16e1)

36,048

5,579
45,430

7,997
(107,155)

6,400

913
(7,809)

(12,597)
133

(230)

(10,313)

(23,007)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (Cont'd)
meElRenE R (E

Year ended 31 March 2015
BE-_F—AF=-HA=1+—HIFE

Notes
b &

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES RBRE(BELNBESHRE
Additions of items of property, plant and NEWME  BER

equipment HEIEHE 14
Proceeds from disposal of items of property, HEWE  HER

plant and equipment REIBEMERE
Decrease in an amount due from the Retained EWREEZREER

Vantage Group, net FRIEF R
Net cash flows from/(used in) WEEBES,/ (FA)

investing activities MIREREFHE
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES RIE%BELNBESHRE
New interest-bearing bank loans METERITER
Repayment of interest-bearing bank loans EEBRITER
Dividend paid to the Retained Vantage Group Eff FREERBZEEHRE
Proceeds from issue of shares BT TS RIE
Share issue expenses B BETHE 26(c)
Net cash flows used in MEXBFEAD

financing activities Rense F48
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH AND ReRBEE&ZEWHM

CASH EQUIVALENTS (M) EE
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year F#HE & MR ESEEY
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT FRNRERRESEEY

END OF YEAR
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH AND HeRBEELE

CASH EQUIVALENTS B &R DT
Cash and bank balances Re RIBITHEH 21
Non-pledged time deposits with original maturity BERREFHE LR =@

of less than three months when acquired Ay E B F 5K 21

55 Excel Development (Holdings) Limited
RRERBRAF

2015
—2-I1f
HK$'000
TERT

(2,294)

72

1,196

(1,026)

8,606
(8,606)

(22,861)
166,554

143,693

133,546

10,147

143,693

2014
—E—F
HK$'000
FHBT

146,732

146,887

2,369
(81,005)
(60,000)
60,000

(8,515)

(87,151)

36,729
129,825

166,554

156,470

10,084

166,554



Statement of Financial Position

B %5 R R

31 March 2015
RZFE—AF=H=4+—H

NON-CURRENT ASSET
Investment in a subsidiary

FRBEE
R—RHEKBRENKE

CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Prepayments a1 3R IA

Due from subsidiaries JiE s Bt B A B 3R I8
Cash and cash equivalents ReEkREEED
Total current assets mEBEEMAE
CURRENT LIABILITY RENEE

Other payables and accruals HENRRIERER
Total current liability MEBELE
NET CURRENT ASSETS REBEEZRE

Net assets & EFE

EQUITY EaR

Issued capital BEITRA
Reserves e

Total equity T HEE

2015

—_E—0F

Notes HK$'000
k=3 FE T
16 —
20 196
16 86,379
21 316
86,891

23 440
440

86,451

86,451

25 2,000
26(c) 84,451
86,451

Poon Yan Min

Li Chi Pong
Director
£

BFE

Director
EZE

2014
—T—U&
HK$'000
FHET

160
86,634
416

87,210

337

337

86,873

86,873

2,000

84,873

86,873
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Notes to Financial Statements
B 1% =R & MY 5

31 March 2015
—EFE-—AF=ZA=+—H

5/

Excel Development (Holdings) Limited (the “Company”) is an
exempted company with limited liability incorporated in the
Cayman Islands. The registered office address of the Company
is located at Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, PO Box 2687,
Grand Cayman, KY1-1111, Cayman Islands. The principal place
of business of the Company is located at No. 155 Waterloo
Road, Kowloon Tong, Kowloon, Hong Kong.

During the year, the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) were principally engaged in civil
engineering works and building construction and maintenance.

In the opinion of the directors, as at 31 March 2015, Profit
Chain Investments Limited (“Profit Chain”), a company
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands (“BVI”), is the
immediate holding company of the Company; Vantage
International (Holdings) Limited (“Vantage”), a company
incorporated in Bermuda and listed on the Main Board of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Hong Kong Stock
Exchange”), is the intermediate holding company of the
Company; and the ultimate holding company of the Company
is Winhale Ltd., a company incorporated in the BVI.

Subsequent to the reporting period, on 5 June 2015, Vantage
has disposed of its entire shareholding in the Company to
Youth Force Asia Ltd. (“Youth Force”), a company incorporated
in the BVI. Youth Force became the immediate and ultimate
holding company of the Company since then.

Vantage and its subsidiaries, but excluding the Group, are
hereafter collectively referred to as the “Retained Vantage
Group”.

Excel Development (Holdings) Limited
TRRERERARE

BEERERABR(TERRAB D R—BERE
HETMAXUNERRBRAA - KRAFIH
5 i} 3% = B iz 7 Cricket Square, Hutchins
Drive, PO Box 2681, Grand Cayman, KY1-
1111, Cayman Islands ° ZNAR] M) £ B2 & i
BN BB NENEEBITEZEI555 o

FAR-ARBRREMBRAR(REIAEE])
TEREIARIRBENRETFEZERR
%o

EERA RE—RHF=A=+—8"
Profit Chain Investments Limited (([Profit
Chain)) —"BERBEXHEE((RBEX
HEDAMAYMBRAR)AEARANE
BERAR: BEEREBERAG(AEE] —
MEBREAMRINEREERINE
RAEl([BEBRZA) ER EMAARE) AR
NEM RN ZER AR AR R A &R ER
AA B AWinhale Ltd. (—FEIfE R BERE XS
A A AR]) -

HAEME A -_T—HFEFRAB - BEH
EHEEHHH 2 AR E MR FYouth Force
Asia Ltd. ([Youth Forcel) » Z AR A—REE
EEELBEESEMAINERAR - Bitt
Youth ForcefEA AR NG 2 HB R &KL

/NI

BEREMBAR(EIERANEE)RNTX
A REREEE] -



Notes to Financial Statements (Cont'd)
Bt 1% Rk R KT R (48

31 March 2015
—E-—AF=ZHA=+—H

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance AYBREDDBREBEESGHMAG(ER
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") SRR B s BERBMBRELE(E
(which include all Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, BUBRESENDBEMBEEANBRE
Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and ZR - BEREGENTEBEH LR KZ
Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified B) BELARESARUEBFTERFGHNZ
Public Accountants (the “HKICPA"), accounting principles WEREFHEMEBRATEN(FERNE)NE
generally accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure BRE  DAAARRBNARRFRNE B
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance which, ZAESEMRA( ETRA A ST #
because the Company has not early adopted the revised BRTEIMER BREEVMEUNAFTE=
disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing of ON  REFBE KR BB E £ K AN R LR
Securities (the “Listing Rules”) of the Hong Kong Stock Bl oo

Exchange, are those of the predecessor Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance (Cap. 32). They have been prepared under the
historical cost convention, except for investment properties,
which have been measured at fair value.

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars BREBHAEIN KNP BREABT(E

("HK$") and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand T2 - mABEEEHE EZ2EE&E LT

("HK$'000") except when otherwise indicated. f(FHETD -

Basis of consolidation mERE

The consolidated financial statements include the financial BEMBHRRERBEARARENBEATEHE

statements of the Company and its subsidiaries for the year ZE—RAF=A=T—BLEFEZHBR

ended 31 March 2015. A subsidiary is an entity (including a x o MBAREAAREENHEEEHNE

structured entity), directly or indirectly, controlled by the BPEERILER) EASE@RBL MY

Company. Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or & J7 B AE B 0 B i A PR R [B] S ) L B sk

has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the EEZANUER®  WABENERHEE

investee and has the ability to affect those returns through its BRMENBIREAEEBRIBENES

power over the investee (i.e., existing rights that give the WEREFNHEBEETHORKEN) L EZE

Group the current ability to direct the relevant activities of the B4R - BN EAS 4 6l 42 o

investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a EARNFHEESRABEEEIRERERAKRS

majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the FEFORFBEOER - VA EREHEAY

Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances in WIRETNENR  AEESEREMAEHEA

assessing whether it has power over an investee, including: FEMBR B

(@)  the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders (@ HEREFEMRXRRAERBEENEGR
of the investee; ZHE

(b)  rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and by EHibERZTHEEMEF X

(c)  the Group's voting rights and potential voting rights. (© AEBRRAERELRRE-

Annual Report 2014/15 5 8
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Notes to Financial Statements (Cont'd)
B 1% Rk R KT R (48

31 March 2015
—EFE-—AF=ZA=+—H

59

Basis of consolidation (Cont’'d)

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the
same reporting period as the Company, using consistent
accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries are consolidated
from the date on which the Group obtains control, and
continue to be consolidated until the date that such control
ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the parent of the
Group and to the non-controlling interests, even if this results
in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance. All
intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and
cash flows relating to transactions between members of the
Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicated that there are changes to one
or more of the three elements of control described above. A
change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss
of control, is accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i)
the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary,
(i) the carrying amount of any non-controlling interest and (iii)
the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity; and
recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration received, (ii)
the fair value of any investment retained and (iii) any resulting
surplus or deficit in profit or loss. The Group's share of
components previously recognised in other comprehensive
income is reclassified to profit or loss or retained profits, as
appropriate, on the same basis as would be required if the
Group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.

Excel Development (Holdings) Limited
TRRERERARE

e E % (H)
MERARMSBRERAEALA —BOT
SBOR RS BRMRE o B AR SR
KENEEBSRE 2 BRNLES - T
BraMBATNEZEEBRL -

BakEME2mBRANSEXLEDTEB
RAKEFARHEAARIFERES - AE
HERSIBFERERER BB - TEEE
NRRAZEERBE  #mZ - WA FX
MASEKBRABBRSEEZRTRAR
RARER2HIKH -

6 = B R B 0 RBR | 3Pt = TR 4% i
ZEP-HEXZHEEE AAKEEEHR
BMAREHREHR - WELBEAERE
s B E (I MR EZHE)  RAIRESIE

EETR

HMAEBLEH—FEHBAR 264 - 8l
HRIIEROZMNBRAAZEE(BEEE)
K EE - (i) E A IE 2 IR = 2 BR 8 (i)
RIERANLERZ Bt R 5 E8  RERGFT
WREZRAFE  (VTREBEMIEEZAF
BER(i)VEREFTANALEE ZBHIE
B LRTREMEEU AR A EBE
R EETER  BiAEEEZNEE
BEESBEMEXNERELEET DA

EEAIREBEN



Notes to Financial Statements (Cont'd)

B 5 R MR (8

31 March 2015
—E-—AF=ZHA=+—H

The Group has adopted the following revised standards and
new interpretation for the first time for the current year's

financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and
HKAS 27 (2011)

Amendments to HKAS 32

Amendments to HKAS 39

HK(IFRIC)-Int 21

Amendment to HKFRS 2 included in
Annual Improvements 2010-2012 Cycle

Amendment to HKFRS 3 included in
Annual Improvements 2010-2012 Cycle

Amendment to HKFRS 13 included in
Annual Improvements 2010-2012 Cycle

Amendment to HKFRS 1 included in
Annual Improvements 2011-2013 Cycle

! Effective from 1 July 2014

Investment Entities

Offsetting Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities

Novation of Derivatives and
Continuation of Hedge
Accounting

Levies

Definition of Vesting Condition"

Accounting for Contingent
Consideration in a Business
Combination’

Short-term Receivables and
Payables

Meaning of Effective HKFRSs

AEBERANAFE BB HRR AT T I
CHESNE i3

ERUBRELRNFI0R REEFE
BEMBREENE2NR
kBB G ENFITHR
(ZF——F)(E7)

BREGHREUNENR (L) HAHZHEER

THEE
BEGHENEIMR(EF]) EETLTAR
HrginiEE

ERERGERERE #HE
£EE®) —REFVUT
BERUBEREERELR(ER]) FBGEANTE
(WA—F—FF2-F—
ZFHHHFENE)
BRUMEREEREING () EHFAHPAANED
(MA—F—FFEE-FT—  BHEE
ZFHHMEENE)
BEHBREEREBE
(BEMA—E—Z4F
EoFE-—FEHNFE
)
BRUMBREENEIR(BE]) FHEFYBEHREES
(MAN-F——FZ-F—  HHE
ZFEHEEKE)

HRHENRENFTE

! BE-Z-—MELtA-HEEX

Annual Report 2014/15 6 O
-l -EFFER



Notes to Financial Statements (Cont'd)
B 1% Rk R KT R (48

31 March 2015
—EFE-—AF=ZA=+—H

o1

Except for the amendment to HKFRS 1 which is only relevant
to an entity’s first HKFRS financial statements, the nature and
the impact of each amendment and interpretation is described
below:

(a

Amendments to HKFRS 10 include a definition of an
investment entity and provide an exception to the
consolidation requirement for entities that meet the
definition of an investment entity. Investment entities are
required to account for subsidiaries at fair value through
profit or loss rather than consolidate them.
Consequential amendments were made to HKFRS 12 and
HKAS 27 (2011). The amendments to HKFRS 12 also set
out the disclosure requirements for investment entities.
The amendments have had no impact on the Group as
the Company does not qualify as an investment entity as
defined in HKFRS 10.

The HKAS 32 Amendments clarify the meaning of
“currently has a legally enforceable right to set off” for
offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities. The
amendments also clarify the application of the offsetting
criteria in HKAS 32 to settlement systems (such as
central clearing house systems) which apply gross
settlement mechanisms that are not simultaneous. The
amendments have had no impact on the Group as the
Group does not have any offsetting arrangement.

The HKAS 39 Amendments provide an exception to the
requirement of discontinuing hedge accounting in
situations where over-the-counter derivatives designated
in hedging relationships are directly or indirectly, novated
to a central counterparty as a consequence of laws or
regulations, or the introduction of laws or regulations.
For continuance of hedge accounting under this
exception, all of the following criteria must be met: (i)
the novations must arise as a consequence of laws or
regulations, or the introduction of laws or regulations; (ii)
the parties to the hedging instrument agree that one or
more clearing counterparties replace their original
counterparty to become the new counterparty to each of
the parties; and (iii) the novations do not result in
changes to the terms of the original derivative other than
changes directly attributable to the change in
counterparty to achieve clearing. The amendments have
had no impact on the Group as the Group has not
novated any derivatives during the current and prior
years.

Excel Development (Holdings) Limited
TRRERERARE

BEBUMBHREENSR 2ETERER
ZERBBFGRELEMNSERRABIN
BEITkRBZHEERZENT:

(a

HEEBVHEREERE10H(EFT) &
RREBBZERBLRBEEEERZ
He(HEEREREERBESR) K
BEERAAEREATEEBERT
RZMBARR > MIEBRELEAAR ©
HEBVBHREENERZRREES
FHERIZE7TR (ZE——F)BIEHRR
BiEa] -  HEBMBHREEE125
(BEDTEINEREBR ZWERE -
AARR LN A BB HREEL
FIOFAETZREERBNER W&
FEITEEAEEELETE -

EEGFENERFRENAEES
BEEMCRAGHAREHEAR
ERERRBIMITZIEEEIZER
ZEERMEFE R G ERIFE325H
HHENRNSEE RS (Pl R & ERT
AR MEBASKRAERS
LEBEERY  c ARAKELEE
MEETH  MZEEITLEHAE
BELTE -

BE G ERFE395% (ERT) DA REE
BISOER - HBl OEPIFOER - EH
REFRETAEE ZSBIMIETA
BEEIAERREEARIBRSH TR
RIS EE R EZBISMER - B
BRADIIMERTHEERE P EFHA
mE  LEFAKLTAAER: OHEH
WBREDNISOER - LB AEBI R
RAABE: W R ITAZITNTHE
—RAZREERSGHEFRRERE
RHETF  RRBBIINTZHZHY
FRNEZETEERREENETA
IR HBRES R ETEEME
HRXHUTFTREESIBZEHRI -
HRAEERAFERBEFEL &
FREMITELAR  BZFETE
UAEBEELTE -



Notes to Financial Statements (Cont'd)
Bt 1% Rk R KT R (48

31 March 2015
—E-—AF=ZHA=+—H

(e)

HK(IFRIC)-Int 21 clarifies that an entity recognises a
liability for a levy when the activity that triggers
payment, as identified by the relevant legislation, occurs.
The interpretation also clarifies that a levy liability is
accrued progressively only if the activity that triggers
payment occurs over a period of time, in accordance
with the relevant legislation. For a levy that is triggered
upon reaching a minimum threshold, the interpretation
clarifies that no liability should be recognised before the
specified minimum threshold is reached. The
interpretation has had no impact on the Group as the
Group does not have any levies.

The HKFRS 2 Amendment clarifies various issues relating
to the definitions of performance and service conditions
which are vesting conditions, including (i) a performance
condition must contain a service condition; (i) a
performance target must be met while the counterparty
is rendering service; (iii) a performance target may relate
to the operations or activities of an entity, or to those of
another entity in the same group; (iv) a performance
condition may be a market or non-market condition; and
(v) if the counterparty, regardless of the reason, ceases to
provide service during the vesting period, the service
condition is not satisfied. The amendment has had no
impact on the Group.

The HKFRS 3 Amendment clarifies that contingent
consideration arrangements arising from a business
combination that are not classified as equity should be
subsequently measured at fair value through profit or loss
whether or not they fall within the scope of HKFRS 9 or
HKAS 39. The amendment has had no impact on the
Group.

The HKFRS 13 Amendment clarifies that short-term
receivables and payables with no stated interest rates can
be measured at invoice amounts when the effect of
discounting is immaterial. The amendment has had no
impact on the Group.

ZR(BRMBHRERELRES) -2
BE2REARSIBENR A EL
i (RAEREE DI AT R)  BEEARER
BUREBRZEET ZRaBIEBHENK
ERCETERSIBENRZEDHE
BE-BRERE - D REMEREDZR
TR - LEIKERBEMSIBZ
BMEMS ZEZBEBREIETE
RIERERN  BMIrEERETAEL -
HRASEYETARE  HZRE
VTENAEEELERE -

BEVBHRESENE2R(ER] EEZ
HEFTE BN R BIGE 2 EARE RS
G2 BEEEE  BROBRGNE
BERBEE (NVEXSHFREHAR
TBE - MIEERBRBR (i)4ERE
RAREEB I KCENEADHERH - X
HE-SEAEMERZELEIEY
BE (VARG RTIHHIET S
i RWHRZEFREBHAT
w EME AR A A B HE RS - AR
R REER - ZEFTLEEAEE
ELETE-

BB ELNNEIR USR] EBE
BRADBREGIEXBEMHMEL
CEARELREBE BB RS
EAFR AT A G ERF395 &
ERN - BEZHEERERRAFER
AR - ZEFTABHAEEELY
@ .

BRMBHREEREI3R(ER]) EB
ENMRZYETERNE  EREMNE
ZEHEKE ENRAARERSR
HE-REITAUEHASEELF

a .
g
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31 March 2015
—EFE-—AF=ZA=+—H

The Group has not applied the following new and revised
HKFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet effective, in
these financial statements.

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments*
Amendments to HKFRS 10 and Sale or Contribution of Assets between
HKAS 28 (2011) an Investor and its Associate or Joint
Venture?
Amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS  /nvestment Entities: Applying the
12 and HKAS 28 (2011) Consolidation Exception?
Amendments to HKFRS 11 Accounting for Acquisitions of Interests in
Joint Operations®
HKFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts®
HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers®
Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure Initiative?

Amendments to HKAS 16 and Clarification of Acceptable Methods of

HKAS 38 Depreciation and Amortisation?
Amendments to HKAS 16 and Agriculture: Bearer Plants?
HKAS 41
Amendments to HKAS 19 Defined Benefit Plans: Employee
Contributions'
Amendments to HKAS 27 (2011)  Equity Method in Separate Financial
Statements?
Annual Improvements Amendments to a number of HKFRSs!
2010-2012 Cycle
Annual Improvements Amendments to a number of HKFRSS'
2011-2013 Cycle
Annual Improvements Amendments to a number of HKFRSs?

2012-2014 Cycle

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016
3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017
4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018
s Effective for an entity that first adopts HKFRSs for its annual

financial statements beginning on or after 1 January 2016 and
therefore is not applicable to the Group

63 Excel Development (Holdings) Limited
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Further information about those HKFRSs that are expected to
be applicable to the Group is as follows:

In September 2014, the HKICPA issued the final version of
HKFRS 9, bringing together all phases of the financial
instruments project to replace HKAS 39 and all previous
versions of HKFRS 9. The standard introduces new
requirements for classification and measurement, impairment
and hedge accounting. The Group expects to adopt HKFRS 9
from 1 April 2018. The Group expects that the adoption of
HKFRS 9 will have an impact on the classification and
measurement of the Group’s financial assets. Further
information about the impact will be available nearer the
implementation date of the standard.

Amendments to HKFRS 10 clarify that the exemption from
presenting consolidated financial statements applies to a parent
entity that is a subsidiary of an investment entity, when the
investment entity measures all of its subsidiaries at fair value.
The amendments to HKFRS 10 also clarify that only a
subsidiary that is not an investment entity itself and provides
support services to the investment entity is consolidated. All
other subsidiaries of an investment entity are measured at fair
value. Consequential amendments were made to HKFRS 12 to
require an investment entity that prepares financial statements
in which all of its subsidiaries are measured at fair value
through profit or loss in accordance with HKFRS 9 to present
the disclosures in respect of investment entities in accordance
with HKFRS 12. HKAS 28 (2011) was also amended to allow an
investor that is not itself an investment entity, and has an
interest in an investment entity associate or joint venture, to
retain the fair value measurement applied by the investment
entity associate or joint venture to the interests in its
subsidiaries. The amendments are not expected to have any
impact on the Group as the Company is not an investment
entity as defined in HKFRS 10.

at
a
et
)
i

HEEARAEBENZERT BB
WEENNE-FERDT:

R-ZF-—MFNA BAGHHASELE
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65

The amendments to HKFRS 11 require that an acquirer of an
interest in a joint operation in which the activity of the joint
operation constitutes a business must apply the relevant
principles for business combinations in HKFRS 3. The
amendments also clarify that a previously held interest in a
joint operation is not remeasured on the acquisition of an
additional interest in the same joint operation while joint
control is retained. In addition, a scope exclusion has been
added to HKFRS 11 to specify that the amendments do not
apply when the parties sharing joint control, including the
reporting entity, are under common control of the same
ultimate controlling party. The amendments apply to both the
acquisition of the initial interest in a joint operation and the
acquisition of any additional interests in the same joint
operation. The amendments are not expected to have any
impact on the financial position or performance of the Group
upon adoption on 1 April 2016.

HKFRS 15 establishes a new five-step model that will apply to
revenue arising from contracts with customers. Under HKFRS
15, revenue is recognised at an amount that reflects the
consideration to which an entity expects to be entitled in
exchange for transferring goods or services to a customer. The
principles in HKFRS 15 provide a more structured approach for
measuring and recognising revenue. The standard also
introduces extensive qualitative and quantitative disclosure
requirements, including disaggregation of total revenue,
information about performance obligations, changes in contract
asset and liability account balances between periods and key
judgements and estimates. The standard will supersede all
current revenue recognition requirements under HKFRSs. The
Group expects to adopt HKFRS 15 on 1 April 2017 and is
currently assessing the impact of HKFRS 15 upon adoption.

Amendments to HKAS 1 include narrow-focus improvements in
respect of the presentation and disclosure in financial
statements in five areas, including materiality, disaggregation
and subtotals, notes structure, disclosure of accounting policies
and presentation of items of other comprehensive income
arising from equity accounted investments. The amendments
further encourage entities to apply professional judgement in
determining what information to disclosure and how to
structure the disclosure in the financial statements. The Group
expects to adopt the amendments from 1 April 2016.
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Amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 clarify the principle in
HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 that revenue reflects a pattern of
economic benefits that are generated from operating business
(of which the asset is part) rather than the economic benefits
that are consumed through the use of the asset. As a result, a
revenue-based method cannot be used to depreciate property,
plant and equipment and may only be used in very limited
circumstances to amortise intangible assets. The amendments
are to be applied prospectively. The amendments are not
expected to have any impact on the financial position or
performance of the Group upon adoption on 1 April 2016 as
the Group has not used a revenue-based method for the
calculation of depreciation of its non-current assets.

The HKAS 16 and HKAS 41 Amendments change the
accounting requirements for biological assets that meet the
definition of bearer plants. Under the amendments, biological
assets that meet the definition of bearer plants will be within
the scope of HKAS 16 instead of HKAS 41. After initial
recognition, bearer plants will be measured under HKAS 16 at
accumulated cost before maturity. After the bearer plants
mature, they will be measured either using the cost model or
revaluation model in accordance with HKAS 16. The
amendments also require that produce growing on the bearer
plants will remain in the scope of HKAS 41 and is measured at
fair value less costs to sell. Government grants relating to
bearer plants will now be accounted for in accordance with
HKAS 20 Accounting for Government Grants and Disclosure of
Government Assistance. The Group expects to adopt the
amendments from 1 April 2016. The amendments are not
expected to have any impact on the Group as the Group does
not have any bearer plants.

The HKAS 19 Amendments apply to contributions from
employees or third parties to defined benefit plans. The
amendments simplify the accounting for contributions that are
independent of the number of years of employee service, for
example, employee contributions that are calculated according
to a fixed percentage of salary. If the amount of the
contributions is independent of the number of years of service,
an entity is permitted to recognise such contributions as a
reduction of service cost in the period in which the related
service is rendered. The Group expects to adopt the
amendments from 1 April 2015.
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The Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle issued in
January 2014 sets out amendments to a number of HKFRSs.
Except for those described in note 2.2, the Group expects to
adopt the amendments from 1 April 2015. None of the
amendments are expected to have a significant financial impact
on the Group. Details of the amendment most applicable to
the Group are as follows:

HKFRS 8 Operating Segments: Clarifies that an entity must
disclose the judgements made by management in applying the
aggregation criteria in HKFRS 8, including a brief description of
operating segments that have been aggregated and the
economic characteristics used to assess whether the segments
are similar. The amendments also clarify that a reconciliation of
segment assets to total assets is only required to be disclosed
if the reconciliation is reported to the chief operating decision
maker.

In addition, the amendments to the Listing Rules announced by
the Stock Exchange in February 2015 relating to the disclosure
of financial information with reference to the Companies
Ordinance (Cap. 622) and HKFRs will be applied for the year
ending March 31, 2016. They will affect the presentation and
disclosure of certain information in the consolidated financial
statements for the next financial year.

Investment in a joint venture

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby the
parties that have joint control of the arrangement have rights
to the net assets of the joint venture. Joint control is the
contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement,
which exists only when decisions about the relevant activities
require the unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.

The Group’s investment in a joint venture is stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at the Group's
share of net assets under the equity method of accounting,
less any impairment losses.

Adjustments are made to bring into line any dissimilar
accounting policies that may exist.
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Investment in a joint venture (Cont’d)

The Group's share of the post-acquisition results and other
comprehensive income of a joint venture is included in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income. In addition, when there has been a
change recognised directly in the equity of the joint venture,
the Group recognises its share of any changes, when
applicable, in the consolidated statement of changes in equity.
Unrealised gains and losses resulting from transactions between
the Group and its joint venture are eliminated to the extent of
the Group’s investment in a joint venture, except where
unrealised losses provide evidence of an impairment of the
asset transferred.

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its investment properties at fair value at
the end of each reporting period. Fair value is the price that
would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability
in an orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the
presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer
the liability takes place either in the principal market for the
asset or liability, or in the absence of a principal market, in the
most advantageous market for the asset or liability. The
principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible
by the Group. The fair value of an asset or a liability is
measured using the assumptions that market participants would
use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market
participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the
asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in
the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to
measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable
inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.
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Fair value measurement (Cont'd)

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or
disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the fair
value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level
input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 — based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 — based on valuation techniques for which the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is observable, either directly or
indirectly

Level 3 — based on valuation techniques for which the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial
statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether
transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by
reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that
is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the
end of each reporting period.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than
construction contract assets, financial assets and investment
properties), the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. An
asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of the asset’s or cash-
generating unit’'s value in use and its fair value less costs of
disposal, and is determined for an individual asset, unless the
asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely
independent of those from other assets or groups of assets, in
which case the recoverable amount is determined for the cash-
generating unit to which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of
an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value in
use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. An impairment loss is charged to profit or
loss in the period in which it arises in those expense categories
consistent with the function of the impaired asset.
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Impairment of non-financial assets (Cont’d) FemEERMEGE)

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as to REREAFMARSIAEREEDREATR
whether there is an indication that previously recognised MARABRREEBRAIEEAFESAR
impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If WL MEBERFDR - Bl Mstal b e
such an indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated. A o REEBETEEMNWB 2 ERAN
previously recognised impairment loss of an asset other than (X ?" EWRER STREBTEANEE
goodwill is reversed only if there has been a change in the WEEBEETEEEE)  Am - BOeBET
estimates used to determine the recoverable amount of that asset, SERMEERBEFEABRREERE
but not to an amount higher than the carrying amount that FTEEEREREEGIRMEMITE ) - it
would have been determined (net of any depreciation/ EREBENELBTHEELEHARGABR
amortisation) had no impairment loss been recognised for the BR -

asset in prior years. A reversal of such an impairment loss is
credited to profit or loss in the period in which it arises.

Related parties S
A party is considered to be related to the Group if: ETFERT  BEALTEBAREEMNEE
i
(@)  the party is a person or a close member of that person’s @ BRATAREAIEZEABERZHN
family and that person KEXKE  BZEA:
() has control or joint control over the Group; () HAEEGESZG #EKERE
i) 2
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or (i HAEBEHEEEATESN =X
(i) is a member of the key management personnel of iy AAEBERAEETRFNE
the Group or of a parent of the Group; ZERABEMKE:
or %
(b) the party is an entity where any of the following by BRATBRBEBRUTEMBLANES:
conditions applies:
() the entity and the Group are members of the same () ZERBERAEERFA-—SEH
group; I2=1
(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the (i) HXERAS —EEMNBE AL
other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow EErX(NAZS—EENLY
subsidiary of the other entity); na - MBARKRREKE A
al)
(iii)  the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the iy ZEEM $§,"%75’5H F=FH
same third party; BERHE

THAREEA
7 BB 82 A

(iv)  one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and (iv)
the other entity is an associate of the third entity;

s

N0

| mit

o R >H:=
kﬂ\ajﬁ»

I gy
Wm

%?

[1]

bﬂ

Annual Report 2014/15 70
—E-N-REFER



Notes to Financial Statements (Cont'd)
B 1% Rk R KT R (48

31 March 2015
—EFE-—AF=ZA=+—H

/1

Related parties (Cont'd)
(b)  the party is an entity where any of the following
conditions applies: (Cont'd)

(v)  the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an
entity related to the Group;

(vi)  the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a); and

(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a
parent of the entity).

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses. The cost of an item of
property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price and
any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working
condition and location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs and
maintenance, is normally charged to profit or loss in the period
in which it is incurred. In situations where the recognition
criteria are satisfied, the expenditure for a major inspection is
capitalised in the carrying amount of the asset as a
replacement. Where significant parts of property, plant and
equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Group
recognises such parts as individual assets with specific useful
lives and depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off
the cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to its
residual value over its estimated useful life. The principal
annual rates used for this purpose are as follows:

Machinery and equipment 24%
Furniture, fixtures and office equipment 24%
Motor vehicles 24%
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Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(Cont'd)

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a
reasonable basis among the parts and each part is depreciated
separately. Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation
method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at
each financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any
significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or
retirement recognised in profit or loss in the year the asset is
derecognised is the difference between the net sales proceeds
and the carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings
(including the leasehold interest under an operating lease for a
property which would otherwise meet the definition of an
investment property) held to earn rental income and/or for
capital appreciation, rather than for use in the production or
supply of goods or services or for administrative purposes; or
for sale in the ordinary course of business. Such properties are
measured initially at cost, including transaction costs.
Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties are
stated at fair value, which reflects market conditions at the end
of each of the reporting period.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values of
investment properties are included in profit or loss in the year
in which they arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an
investment property are recognised in profit or loss in the year
of the retirement or disposal.
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Leases

Leases that transfer substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets to the Group, other than legal title, are
accounted for as finance leases. At the inception of a finance
lease, the cost of the leased asset is capitalised at the present
value of the minimum lease payments and recorded together
with the obligation, excluding the interest element, to reflect
the purchase and financing. Assets held under capitalised
finance leases, including prepaid land lease payments under
finance leases, are included in property, plant and equipment,
and depreciated over the shorter of the lease terms and the
estimated useful lives of the assets. The finance costs of such
leases are charged to profit or loss so as to provide a constant
periodic rate of charge over the lease terms.

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets remain with the lessor are accounted for
as operating leases. Where the Group is the lessee, rentals
payable under the operating leases net of any incentives
received from the lessor are charged to profit or loss on the
straight-line basis over the lease terms.

Investments and other financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as loans and
receivables. The Group determines the classification of its
financial assets at initial recognition. When financial assets are
recognised initially, they are measured at fair value plus
transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the
financial assets, except in the case of financial assets recorded
at fair value through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases
or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the period generally established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace.

The Group’s financial assets include cash and cash equivalents,
the gross amount due from customers for contract works,
accounts and other receivables and deposits.
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Investments and other financial assets (Cont'd)

Subsequent measurement

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an
active market. After initial measurement, such assets are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest rate method less any allowance for impairment.
Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and includes fees or costs
that are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The
effective interest rate amortisation is included in other income
and gains in profit or loss. The loss arising from impairment is
recognised in profit or loss in finance costs for loans and in
other expenses for receivables.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial
asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily
derecognised (i.e., removed from the Group’s consolidated
statement of financial position) when:

o the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired; or
o the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows

from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the
received cash flows in full without material delay to a
third party under a “pass-through” arrangement; and
either (a) the Group has transferred substantially all the
risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has
neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of
the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement,
it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and
rewards of ownership of the asset. When it has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards
of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the Group
continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of
the Group’s continuing involvement. In that case, the Group
also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and
the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the
rights and obligations that the Group has retained.
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Derecognition of financial assets (Cont’d)

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee
over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the
original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum
amount of consideration that the Group could be required to

repay.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each of the reporting period
whether there is any objective evidence that a financial asset or
a group of financial assets is impaired. An impairment exists if
one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition
of the asset have an impact on the estimated future cash flows
of the financial asset or the group of financial assets that can
be reliably estimated. Evidence of impairment may include
indications that a debtor or a group of debtors is experiencing
significant financial difficulty, default or delinquency in interest
or principal payments, the probability that they will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation and observable
data indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the
estimated future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or
economic conditions that correlate with defaults.

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the Group first
assesses whether impairment exists individually for financial
assets that are individually significant, or collectively for
financial assets that are not individually significant. If the Group
determines that no objective evidence of impairment exists for
an individually assessed financial asset, whether significant or
not, it includes the asset in a group of financial assets with
similar credit risk characteristics and collectively assesses them
for impairment. Assets that are individually assessed for
impairment and for which an impairment loss is, or continues
to be, recognised are not included in a collective assessment of
impairment.

The amount of any impairment loss identified is measured as
the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future
credit losses that have not yet been incurred). The present
value of the estimated future cash flows is discounted at the
financial asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e., the effective
interest rate computed at initial recognition).
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Impairment of financial assets (Cont'd)

Financial assets carried at amortised cost (Cont’d)
The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of
an allowance account and the loss is recognised in profit or
loss. Interest income continues to be accrued on the reduced
carrying amount and is accrued using the rate of interest used
to discount the future cash flows for the purpose of measuring
the impairment loss. Loans and receivables together with any
associated allowance are written off when there is no realistic
prospect of future recovery and all collateral has been realised
or has been transferred to the Group.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated
impairment loss increases or decreases because of an event
occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously
recognised impairment loss is increased or reduced by adjusting
the allowance account. If a write-off is later recovered, the
recovery is credited to other expenses in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified as loans and borrowings. The
Group determines the classification of its financial liabilities at
initial recognition.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and
net of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Group’'s financial liabilities include accounts and other
payables and accruals of costs for contract works.

Subsequent measurement

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings
are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest rate method unless the effect of discounting
would be immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.
Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the
liabilities are derecognised as well as through the effective
interest rate amortisation process.
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17

Financial liabilities (Cont'd)

Subsequent measurement (Cont’d)

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are
an integral part of the effective interest rate. The effective
interest rate amortisation is included in finance costs in profit
or loss.

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are those
contracts that require a payment to be made to reimburse the
holder for a loss it incurs because the specified debtor fails to
make a payment when due in accordance with the terms of a
debt instrument. A financial guarantee contract is recognised
initially as a liability at its fair value, adjusted for transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the issuance of the
guarantee. Subsequent to initial recognition, the Group
measures the financial guarantee contract at the higher of: (i)
the amount of the best estimate of the expenditure required to
settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting
period; and (i) the amount initially recognised less, when
appropriate, cumulative amortisation.

Derecognition of financial liabilities
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under
the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from
the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms
of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an
exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of the
original liability and a recognition of a new liability, and the
difference between the respective carrying amounts is
recognised in profit or loss.
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Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net
amount is reported in the statement of financial position if
there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the
recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net
basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand
deposits, and short term highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash, are subject to
an insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a short
maturity of generally within three months when acquired, less
bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form an
integral part of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial
position, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and
at banks, including term deposits and assets similar in nature
to cash, which are not restricted as to use.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax
relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised
outside profit or loss, either in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior
periods are measured at the amount expected to be recovered
from or paid to the taxation authorities, based on tax rates
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted
by the end of each of the reporting period, taking into
consideration interpretations and practices prevailing in the
jurisdiction in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.
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Income tax (Cont'd)
Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

o when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and, at the
time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting
profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

o in respect of taxable temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries and a joint venture,
when the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences can be controlled and it is probable that the
temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, the carryforward of unused tax credits and any
unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available
against which the deductible temporary differences, the
carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can
be utilised, except:

o when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition
of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a
business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor
taxable profit or loss; and

o in respect of deductible temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries and a joint venture,
deferred tax assets are only recognised to the extent that
it is probable that the temporary differences will reverse
in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences can be
utilised.
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Income tax (Cont'd)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it
is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at the
end of each reporting period and are recognised to the extent
that it has become probable that sufficient taxable profit will
be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is
realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a
legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to
the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where
there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received
and all attaching conditions will be complied with. When the
grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised as income on
a systematic basis over the periods that the costs, which it is
intended to compensate, are expensed.
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Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Group and when the revenue can be
measured reliably, on the following bases:

(@  from construction, renovation and other contracts, based
on the percentage of completion basis, as further
explained in the accounting policy for “Construction,
renovation and other contracts” below;

(b)  from work orders of contracts for alterations, additions,
repairs and maintenance, based on the value of
individual work orders certified by relevant employers;

(©) rental income, on a time proportion basis over the lease
terms;

(d) interest income, on an accrual basis using the effective
interest method by applying the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts over the
expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter
period, when appropriate, to the net carrying amount of
the financial asset; and

(e) management fee income is recognised when the
management services are rendered.

Construction, renovation and other contracts
Contract revenue comprises the agreed contract amount and
appropriate amounts from variation orders, claims and incentive
payments. Contract costs incurred comprise direct materials,
the costs of subcontracting, direct labour and an appropriate
proportion of variable and fixed construction overheads.

Revenue from fixed price contracts is recognised on the
percentage of completion method, measured by reference to
the percentage of certified value of work performed to date to
the total contract sum of the relevant contracts.

Provision is made for foreseeable losses as soon as they are
anticipated by management.

Where contract costs incurred to date plus recognised profits
less recognised losses exceed progress billings, the surplus is
treated as an amount due from customers for contract works.
Where progress billings exceed contract costs incurred to date
plus recognised profits less recognised losses, the surplus is
treated as accruals of costs for contract works.
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Employee benefits EERA

Paid leave carried forward HEEF A

The Group provides paid annual leave to its employees under their AEBRBEREBANVEEFELENHEESR
employment contracts on a calendar year basis. Under certain REEHFFR EETHEALT  RWEHME
circumstances, such leave which remains untaken as at the end of EREFMRFERANBRBETES - WHIERE
the reporting period is permitted to be carried forward and BEEET—FECLAH REDRGFHEER
utilised by the respective employees in the following year. An N -REEEFAELARGENETRE
accrual is made at the end of each reporting period for the FIp R FBHARRKATBEIREA -

expected future cost of such paid leave earned during the year by
the employees and carried forward.

Pension schemes R 1k 15 7 512

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory AEEEZRBRERGIMAESTEKRONAERES
Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) ERSEFTEHRIGESNMEQIE S RIKEF
under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for El(aEestsl )NEEREREES
those employees who are eligible to participate in the MPF 2o HRIZEEREFHE—BOLHE K
Scheme. Contributions are made based on a percentage of the EiEBRBESTENRAINHAELERE
employees’ basic salaries and are charged to profit or loss as mEEMR - - RESFAENEERBEYER
they become payable in accordance with the rules of the MPF EeRHATHAEEEESHEIR - EMHE
Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately BEEHAE AXENEZEREHE
from those of the Group in an independently administered BREEMS -

fund. The Group's employer contributions vest fully with the
employees when contributed into the MPF Scheme.

The Group also operates a Mandatory Provident Fund AEENTAEERKRZ2HERBFIMELNRESH R
Exempted Occupational Retirement Schemes Ordinance B SR R ET Bk 01 (158 22 3R KT BIE B D R
("ORSO") retirement benefit scheme for those employees who RAE T 5T 20 12 B 37 38 B 2 R IR 21K fI
are eligible to participate in the ORSO scheme. This scheme & ZErEl N ENRBE e EMm S X E
operates in a way similar to the MPF Scheme, except that B MEEREEREASEEEHRHIDUER
when an employee leaves the scheme prior to his/her interest A BEZ T8l Al RS EAFE A4
in the Group’s employee contributions vesting fully, the MUY E EHAMEBE B TR -

ongoing contributions payable by the Group are reduced by the
relevant amount of forfeited employer’s contributions.

Annual Report 2014/15 8 2
—E-N-REFER



Notes to Financial Statements (Cont'd)
B 1% Rk R KT R (48

31 March 2015
—EFE-—AF=ZA=+—H

83

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for
their intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of
those assets. The capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases
when the assets are substantially ready for their intended use
or sale. Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on
qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs
capitalised. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the
period in which they are incurred. Borrowing costs consist of
interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection
with the borrowing of funds.

Dividends

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and declared,
because the Company’s memorandum and articles of
association grant the directors the authority to declare interim
dividends. Consequently, interim dividends are recognised
immediately as a liability when they are proposed and
declared.

Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they are
approved by the shareholders in a general meeting.
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The preparation of the Group's financial statements requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect
the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and
liabilities, and their accompanying disclosures and the disclosure
of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions
and estimates could result in outcomes that could require a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of the assets or
liabilities affected in the future.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of each reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year, are described below.

Construction, renovation and other contracts
As further explained in note 2.4 to the financial statements,
revenue and profit recognition on contract works is dependent
on the estimation of the total outcome of the construction
contract, as well as the work performed to date. Based on the
Group’s past experience and the nature of the contract
activities undertaken by the Group, the Group makes estimates
of the point at which it considers the work is sufficiently
advanced such that the costs to complete and the revenue can
be reliably estimated. As a result, until this point is reached,
the amount due from customers for contract works as
disclosed in note 18 to the financial statements will not include
profit which the Group may eventually realise from the work
performed to date. In addition, actual outcomes in terms of
total contract costs and/or revenue may be higher or lower
than those estimated at the end of each reporting period,
which would affect the revenue and profit recognised in future
years.

Significant assumptions are required to estimate the total
contract costs and the recoverable variation works that will
affect whether any provision is required for foreseeable losses.
The estimates are made based on past experience and
knowledge of the project management.

REAKBNMBRRFTREEEEFLE
BN A -BEMABENBRSSBELE
BEM VI B B AR - WRBERAE
B AT AEZEMRERMNMEFOHTEE
- TR B AR AR RE I EEELBE
WEEEFEERAEMNER -

RN TR EM

AT Hd TSI B EX BB ZREERT
BEMREERATUNERAR - BABAKRK
MEBMRER  UERBZREPRFEZMEE
TREEMEMEMEZNRIR -

ZEE BHYREMIEEHN
BN B RRM E2ATE — S BEE - 54
I%:EEI’JW)\&/ FIRERARTETHRE
BHZHBER URESEETIEE -
*ETF$%.MEE'JW%ﬁ&$%.ﬁﬁLﬁ::
WEBHNEES  AEEBERERATREZE
€ 2 LAR] 52 i 5138 T AR 2R IR U B 1 (1
o AL - EREZEER OB HRE
M8 REREFPZ2ANIRERLTE
EASEERKRAERESEETIEZEERDN
SR o BN MALRAR S HIRA B B
ERUEESRIERSREBRRNGEE - M
FERRRFERBOUA KEF o

RN EAARET B REARA
BRBRFREAEGOARESETE
FEELEARR - BrIDREEEEEN
AR B A MR o
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Estimation uncertainty (Cont’d)

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of
impairment for all non-financial assets at the end of each
reporting period. Non-financial assets are tested for impairment
when there are indicators that the carrying amounts may not
be recoverable. An impairment exists when the carrying value
of an asset or a cash-generating unit exceeds its recoverable
amount, which is the higher of its fair value less costs of
disposal and its value in use. The calculation of the fair value
less costs of disposal is based on available data from binding
sales transactions in an arm’s length transaction of similar
assets or observable market prices less incremental costs for
disposing of the asset. When value in use calculations are
undertaken, management must estimate the expected future
cash flows from the asset or cash-generating unit and choose
a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value
of those cash flows.

Estimation of fair value of investment properties
As disclosed in note 15 to the financial statements, investment
properties are revalued at the end of each reporting period on
the market value, existing use basis by independent
professionally qualified valuers. Such valuations were based on
certain assumptions and estimates, which are subject to
uncertainty and might materially differ from the actual
outcomes. In making the judgement for valuation of investment
properties under market value, existing use basis, information
from current prices in an active market for similar properties is
considered and assumptions that are mainly based on market
conditions existing at the end of each reporting period are
used.

Excel Development (Holdings) Limited
RRERBRAF

fl 5T B A 72 E 1 ()

FE & & E Bl

REBESHR AREFEMBEFEREE
EERBEEMFARETR - EETRRFARBE
WERESHEE  FeREESETHE
AR - BEEEXRTELEMUNEASE
BEHEATRDEEBIEAFEBROERE
MERBEMEPHRAE)E - MFER
B AFEREERRNZREEZQFRA
ETRBHNRINBLEELERZAFN
BELABEETSERRELEEEME
ERAMAE - EHEEREER  EEE
BEBAERARRRAEEXRSELE
UHRERE  FARERZHENMRREHE
ZEReRENKE -

REYWHE L FER G

WMINEA TS MR FEISPTINE - REMERS
BEMRBBUEXREERGEMERTSE
BRREAGEERML - FAMGLETNRES
TAREEZRRGAMET  ZFREK
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For management purposes, the Group has only one reportable
operating segment, which is civil engineering works and
building construction and maintenance. Since this is the only
operating segment of the Group, no further operating segment
analysis thereof is presented.

The Group’s revenue from external customers was derived
solely from its operations in Hong Kong during the year, and
the non-current assets of the Group were located in Hong
Kong as at 31 March 2015 and 2014.

Information about major customers
Revenue from each major customer which accounted for 10%
or more of the Group’s revenue for the year, is set out below:

Customer A =FEA
Customer B ZFEB
Customer C EFC
* Less than 10% of revenue

Except for the aforesaid, no revenue from a single external
customer accounted for 10% or more of the Group’s revenue.
Government bureaus and departments of the Government of
the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region (“HKSAR
Government”) are considered as a single customer.

Information about products and services

Revenue from external customers:

Contract works for civil engineering works TR TR &4 T2
Contract works for building construction 12 5 i & f1
and maintenance REAHIR

KESEEPHWA:

REEMS  AEEEE —EAHRELE
W AMEATERBTFRERRE - ARG
RAREEHE L0 WEETIEE
FHEE D AT

| i S

AEBRAFEARBINETFEFLHOBAER
BEEEENER R_Z—LFK_F—
ME=ZA=1+—8 AKENFRBHEED
LRERE -

IEREFMNEHN
KB EEERPHIRAMGAEBRAFER
AH10% S BA £+ 30T AR :

2015 2014
—E—FF —E-AF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHExT F# T
372,739 429,082
159,698 842,808
108,016 N/A*

* W A #110% AT

B EES - EEE— RS (A E
AH10%3E B b o &5 I RE B ([
B E I & BT IR R R 2P 8
E—%F

EmRBRENER
2015 2014
—E-HE —T—NEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FEx FET
542,915 622,487
159,941 854,845
702,856 1,477,332
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Revenue, which is also the Group’s turnover, represents the
appropriate proportion of contract revenue from construction,
renovation and other contracts.

An analysis of revenue, other income and gains is as follows:

Revenue WA

Contract revenue EHIRREBA

Other income and gains Hih A Rk =%

Interest income FLEHA

Consultancy fee income BB KA

Rental income e A

Management fee income EREKA

Government subsidies* I #6 B >

Gain on disposal of items of property, &% « # 22
plant and equipment HEIE BRI S

Gain on changes in fair value of wEMERFTE
investment properties Faplm

Sundry income I A

* Subsidies have been received from the Hong Kong Vocational

Training Council and the Construction Industry Council,

institutions established by the HKSAR Government, for providing
on-the-job training for graduate engineers and trainers,
respectively. There are no unfulfilled conditions or contingencies
relating to these subsidies.

87 Excel Development (Holdings) Limited
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WA AEENEXRB) NEFERNE
& REMHOGIBESOPHEELINE

BN

WA~ B AR E 2 DT

2015

—E—HEF

Note HK$'000
kg FERT

702,856

85
1,200
1,400

73

72

15 200
133

3,163

2014

—E—-EF

HK$'000
TAT

1,477,332

287

1,200

5,531
140

161

162

7,481

* DRMEACEENTIZMRBERMER
BIRGSEEBREIRPRREXZS (R
BREBRFRIOEE)NEE - RER
BEEAZERPNRBITRMARARSE

fi o
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2015 2014
—E-IF —E-mF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx T T
Interest on bank loans and overdrafts RITERRBITEIOHF L
wholly repayable within five years BRAFRNEHREER 39 196
The Group's profit before tax is arrived at after charging: REBZBRBANEMNEHNE T &IE:
2015 2014
—E-RF —ET-F
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
o & FTHER FHET
Depreciation e 14 204 266
Auditors’ remuneration L N R 1,260 1,200
Employee benefits expense (exclusive of EB @M X (T BEEE
directors’ remuneration — note 8): Bl & — Bf5E8) -
Wages and salaries TERF 30,690 35,434
Pension scheme contributions RKTE FET 85
(defined contribution schemes) (RS 1,140 1,327
31,830 36,761
Minimum lease payments under LEHETH
operating leases: xEMEE:
Land and buildings T REF 2,348 2,515
Equipment B4 177 196
2,525 2,711
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Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant to the
Listing Rules and section 161 of the predecessor Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance (Cap. 32), is as follows:

AT R iR £ R R R AT & B AR R (5
NE)FOVEABRBERNAFENEETHE

2015 2014
—E—REF —E—U4F
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#& T FA&T
Fees we 576 192
Other emoluments: Hoth 2 BY -
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e RMEEYHZ 3,465 3,277
Discretionary performance-related B % IR H 45
bonuses BB 1B T8 AL 3,850 4,661
Pension scheme contributions R RAE B ET & R
(defined contribution schemes) (EBEH RS 120 120
7,435 8,058
8,011 8,250
(@) Independent non-executive directors (@ BILkHBITESE
The fees paid to independent non-executive directors RERNXNTEIIFERTESNES
during the year were as follows: m
Salaries,
allowances Discretionary Pension
and benefits performance- scheme Total
Fees in kind related bonuses contributions remuneration
e ERR HERBHH BIRER
we BEWA & HEERA sHEMER Y K
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FH&T FAIT FHET FAIT FHET
2015 —E-HE
Dr. Law Kwok Sang BREHL 144 — — — 144
Professor Patrick Wong Lung Tak BEEEHK 144 — — — 144
Ms. Mak Suk Hing ERE 2+ 144 — — — 144
432 — — — 432
2014 —E2-mz
Dr. Law Kwok Sang BRERL 48 — — — 48
Professor Patrick Wong Lung Tak HEEHK 48 — — — 48
Ms. Mak Suk Hing R 2+ 48 — — — 48
144 — — — 144

There were no other emoluments payable to the
independent non-executive directors during the year
(2014: Nil).

Excel Development (Holdings) Limited
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(b) Executive directors and a non-executive (b) BITEER—BHFEHITESE
director
Salaries,
allowances Discretionary Pension
and benefits performance- scheme Total
Fees in kind related bonuses contributions remuneration
e ERR HRBHH BIREA
e R/ M B A sHEIE R oY K
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET TER THET TET THET
2015 —2-1F
Executive directors WITES
Mr. Li Chi Pong FRMBEE
(chief executive officer) (T4 %) - 1,934 3,000 60 4,994
Mr. Poon Yan Min ERREE — 1,531 850 60 2,441
— 3,465 3,850 120 7,435
Non-executive director FHMTES
Mr. Yau Kwok Fai B S A 144 — — — 144
144 3,465 3,850 120 7,579
Salaries,
allowances Discretionary Pension
and benefits performance- scheme Total
Fees in kind  related bonuses contributions remuneration
e 2ER HRIFEH BIRER
we EWH = BB B BERE B e
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHT FHET FHT FHET
2014 ZE-MmF
Executive directors WITES
Mr. Li Chi Pong FTaBEE
(chief executive officer) (FTE 4 #) — 1,840 4,000 60 5,900
Mr. Poon Yan Min BEERTAE — 1,437 661 60 2,158
— 3,277 4,661 120 8,058
Non-executive director FHMITES
Mr. Yau Kwok Fai b B 5t A 48 — — — 48
48 3,277 4,661 120 8,106

There was no arrangement under which a director
waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during the

year (2014: Nil).

RER TEEFHEXRERES
MM eORHE(ZT—HF: &)
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The five highest paid employees during the year included two
(2014: two) directors, details of whose remuneration are set
out in note 8 above. Details of the remuneration of the

remaining three (2014: three)
employees for the year are as follows:

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind

Discretionary performance-related bonuses

Pension scheme contributions

non-director,

highest paid

e FRREDH G
HERIFH BB BIEA
RARAE F B R

The number of non-director, highest paid employees whose
remuneration fell within the following bands is as follows:

Nil to HK$1,000,000
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000

Excel Development (Holdings) Limited
RRERBRAF

REALEERFMNERREMA (=T —
ME-MB)EF RENHSFRIAR L
XHEES - REFER - A= (ZF—MF:
CR)RRFTHMFETNRENNSFHE
LU

2015 2014
—E-EHF —E-NF
HK$000 HK$'000
FE T FAT
2,796 2,982
216 210

54 54

3,066 3,246

MENTFTIENNTeSFMmEESEHN
BB AHWLT:

2015 2014
—E-AfF —E-mE

% 1,000,000/ 7T 1 1
1,000,0017% 7E £1,500,0007% 7t 2 2
3 3
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Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman Islands
and the BVI, the Group is not subject to any income tax in the
Cayman Islands and the BVI. Hong Kong profits tax has been
provided at the rate of 16.5% (2014: 16.5%) on the estimated
assessable profits arising in Hong Kong during the year.

Group: KEE
Current — Hong Kong BEH — FE
Charge for the year FEER
Underprovision/(Overprovision) BEFEEET
in prior years (EBRERHB
Deferred (note 24) IR IE (K1 i 24)
Total tax charge for the year FERIBEX LA

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit before
tax at the statutory rate to the tax expense at the effective tax
rate is as follows:

BEFREHERERBEELHENEF LR
Bl AEEBESNHAESHE N NEE L
EMNEAABH - BEFNEBHREBRERTE
EANEEBESE ZHFHER S F1216.5%
ZHRE(ZZE—F 16.5%) BE o

2015 2014
—ZE-hF —E—mF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET F# T
3,172 7,663

(17)

8)

3,178 7,638

AR IROE TE TR 5T B R BATE A ) B R
XHEZERRXGFENR R LK
mr

Group 2015 2014
rEHE —E-HF —T—NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FER FET
Profit before tax B A% Al & 19,052 36,034
Tax at the Hong Kong statutory tax rate BRBEBETEBERI65%E
of 16.5% R 3,144 5,946
Adjustments in respect of current tax of %381 #5
previous periods BV EA 7% 18 H o # 3 (17)
Income not subject to tax BARB AN (47) (20)
Expenses not deductible for tax AT A& 98 1,739
Others Hh (20) (10)
Tax charge at the Group's effective tax rate NEFIZ TR X1 HE
B IR X 3,178 7,638
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The consolidated profit attributable to owners of the parent for
the year ended 31 March 2015 included a loss of
HK$8,827,000 (2014: HK$12,154,000), which has been dealt
with in the financial statements of the Company (note 26(c)).

ThHR R OR AR B

Interim and final dividend

The directors do not recommend the payment of any final
dividend in respect of the year (2014: Nil).

Pursuant to the reorganisation of the Company in connection
with the listing of the shares of the Company on the Main
Board of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange (the
“Reorganisation”), the Company became the holding company
of the companies now comprising the Group on 21 November
2013. On 21 November 2013 and before the completion of the
Reorganisation, Great Jump Enterprises Limited (“Great Jump”),
a subsidiary of the Company, declared a special dividend of
HK$60,000,000 to the then shareholder, Profit Chain. Such
special dividend was paid in December 2013.

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, on 5 June
2015, the directors recommended the declaration and payment
of a special cash dividend of HK$50,000,000, representing
HK$0.25 per ordinary share in the issued share capital of the
Company, out of the share premium account of the Company.
The special cash dividend is subject to the approval of the
Company’s shareholders at the forthcoming extraordinary
general meeting.

93 Excel Development (Holdings) Limited
RRERBRAF

HE_Z—HAE=A=+t—RHIEE 82
REAAELGEERF PO EENER
8,827,000/ ;L (= & — I £ : 12,154,000/%
JL) B AR AR Y B 75 R & (BT sE26() ©

2015 2014
—E-FfF —E—NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR FHET

EETRARAFERNEFARGRE(Z
T—OF : H\) o

RBEARRBHARRRG R B BB PIEIR
FrFmETNEA(EA]D  ARARZE
—=F+ A+ BRABRSEARAEH
AAWIER AT - RZE—ZF+—F =+
—BEREHATHKA  NEEOKHEQAE
Great Jump Enterprises Limited ([Great
Jump) A1 H & B /9 A% 3 Profit ChainE J& 45 B
[ 260,000,000 7T - ZHFFHIKREE N
T—=F+ZA%f-

MEMKRE RN E—HEALR B=F
EREROEEEREPERELKMNFRNRE
% £.50,000,000/8 7T * #8E R AR E BT
R AR AR B A%0.258 7T ° 5P S B
AFEAABREREE AN RS RS
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The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the
profit for the year attributable to owners of the parent of
HK$15,874,000 (2014: HK$28,396,000) and the weighted
average number of ordinary shares of 200,000,000 (2014:
165,068,493) in issue during the year.

The weighted average number of ordinary shares used to
calculate the basic earnings per share amount for the year
ended 31 March 2014 includes the one ordinary share of the
Company issued upon incorporation, the 49,999,999 new
ordinary shares issued pursuant to the Reorganisation (note
25(a)) and the 100,000,000 new ordinary shares issued
pursuant to the Capitalisation Issue (note 25(b)), as if all these
shares had been in issue throughout the year ended 31 March
2014, and the weighted average of 50,000,000 new ordinary
shares issued pursuant to the Share Offer (note 25(c)).

No adjustment has been made to the basic earnings per share
amounts presented for the years ended 31 March 2015 and
2014 in respect of a dilution as the Group had no potentially
dilutive ordinary shares in issue during the years.

RAFE  EREAEFDRESARES
A FEAE 2 % 115,874,000 7T (=B — PO 4F
28,396,000 L) M FNEEITEBBK 2 M
# ¥ 15 #0200,000,0000% (= T — PO 4
165,068,4930% )5t & -

HE-_Z-—NE=A=+—RHI-FE AR
ESREAEN B INEFYEBTE
RRABRK BTz —RERK - BIE
&= 48 FT 3 17 #949,999,9990% X @ A% (Fff 5%
25(a)) K 4R 15 & 7R {b 3 77 #9100,000,000 I &
AL (Mt sE25() » MIMZEROHREE -
—MME=ZA=+—H I BEFERND LT
LA K2 4R ¥ A% 15 %% & 1 8517 #950,000,000 % %
B (M FE25(0) 2 i & -
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Group

31 March 2015

At 31 March 2014 and
at 1 April 2014:

Cost

Accumulated depreciation
Net carrying amount

At 1 April 2014, net of accumulated
depreciation

Additions

Depreciation provided during the year

At 31 March 2015, net of accumulated
depreciation

At 31 March 2015:
Cost

Accumulated depreciation

Net carrying amount

Excel Development (Holdings) Limited
RRERBRAF

REH
Machinery
and
equipment
BERRE
HK$'000
FERT
ZE-HEF=ZH=t-H
RZZ—NFE=A=+—HK
—E-NEMA—R:
AR 1,308
ZEME (1,308)
REFE —
RZE—MEMA—H
MRt E —
NE 2,290
FRMERE (138)
RZFE-—RAF=RA=1+—H
MR RFFE 2,152
RZE—HAF=A=1+—8:
(BN 3,598
it & (1,446)
REFE 2,152

Furniture,
fixtures and
office
equipment
K
EHEER
WARE
HK$'000
TR

695
(633)

62

62

(36)

30

699
(669)

30

Motor
vehicles

AE
HK$'000
TER

2,429
(2,387)

42

42

(30)

12

1,994
(1,982)

12

Total

®at
HK$'000
TER

4,432
(4,328)

104

104
2,294
(204)

2,194

6,291
(4,097)

2,194
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14.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

14. W% - BBERREGE)

(Cont’'d)
Group (Cont’'d) AEE (&)
Furniture,
fixtures and
Machinery and office Motor
equipment equipment vehicles Total
BRAL
BEEER
Y& WRRE "E s
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAET FET FAET
31 March 2014 —E-MUEZA=+-H
At 1 April 2013; R-ZE—=FmA—A:
Cost A 1,308 694 3,532 5,534
Accumulated depreciation it & (1,308) (549) (3,313) (5,170)
Net carrying amount REFE — 145 219 364
At 1 April 2013, net of accumulated RZZE—=F1A—H
depreciation Mk EFINE — 145 219 364
Additions NE — 1 20 21
Disposals HE — — (15) (15)
Depreciation provided during the year FRTERE — (84) (182) (266)
At 31 March 2014, net of accumulated R-ZE-MF=A=+—H
depreciation HHREFHE — 62 42 104
At 31 March 2014: R=ZE—WMFE=R=1+—A:
Cost BN 1,308 695 2,429 4,432
Accumulated depreciation REME (1,308) (633) (2,387) (4,328)
Net carrying amount REFE — 62 42 104
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Group

Carrying amount at F Y
beginning of year FREE

Gain on fair value changes N EZEHW =

Carrying amount at end of year FEARKREE

The Group’s investment properties are situated in Hong Kong
and are held under medium term leases.

The Group’s investment properties were revalued on 31 March
2015 by DTZ Debenham Tie Leung Limited, independent
professionally qualified valuers, at HK$800,000 (2014:
HK$600,000), on the market value, existing use basis.

The fair values of the Group’s investment properties at 31
March 2015 and 2014 were measured using the direct
comparison method based on market observable transactions
of similar properties and were adjusted to reflect the
conditions and locations of the subject properties and hence
were classified as Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy.

During the vyear, there were no transfers of fair value
measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers
into or out of Level 3.

Excel Development (Holdings) Limited
RRERBRAF

AEE
2015 2014
—E-EF —FmF
Note HK$"000 HK$'000
H i TR FTET
600 600
5 200 —
800 600

AEBEBNREMECNEEL AP HED
BA-

RZZ-—HF=A=+—RH AEENKE
MERBUEXSERGEMBRRITA
BARETELREERGEESHEER
800,000 7T (== — PO 4F : 600,000/% 7T) ©

REENREDER_T—AFR_T N
FZA=ZT-BENAFEDEHELUDEN
BRETSEX5ERERLBOEETIE
WEFEARRBODENRREMLE - I
BUHEIBAREATESERANE_E -

G NE-ERE B2 ML EAFEE
SHY NEEBEARENESE -
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Unlisted share, at cost JEETRAD - A
Due from subsidiaries JE U B B A )

The amounts due from subsidiaries included in the Company’s
current assets are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on
demand.

The carrying amounts of the amounts due from subsidiaries
approximate to their fair values.

Company
RAF

2015 2014
—ZE-RF —E -
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET TET
86,379 86,634
86,379 86,634
FI N B E) i B B E 9 FE WP B A R ROR

REER RENRARELRERE -

EWHE AR RAMEEESRELAFENR

e

= oo
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55

2 ==
=T (7B

Particulars of the subsidiaries of the Group are set out below:

Company name

AEER

Best Trader International Limited

("Best Trader")

Great Jump

Top Integration Limited
(“Top Integration”)

Excel Engineering Company Limited

(“Excel Engineering”
hETRARXA (R

Gadelly Construction Company Limited

MEMEEFRAF

Excel Construction Development Limited

)
@wIR])

(“Excel Construction”)

Place and date of
incorporation and
place of
operations

= BR SZ it B %
AHREELH

BVI

28 May 2013
EBRLES
—2-=F

TA=-+NH

BVI
6 January 2000

RERIHE

~EETEF-AXA

BVI

28 March 2000
REBREAHS
—EEEE
=A=Z+NH

Hong Kong

7 May 1976

s
—WtRERALR

Hong Kong

8 May 1981

B
—AWN—FHANH

Hong Kong
20 May 2013
Eig
—®-=f%
AA=+A

Excel Development (Holdings) Limited
TRRERERARE

Nominal value of
issued ordinary
share capital

ERITEAR
BANEE

Uss$1

UsS$10,000

10,0003 7T

HK$18,800,000

18,800,000/% 7T

HK$23,288,000

23,288,000/ 7T

AEEMBARMFFBEHINMOT :

Percentage of equity
attributable to the

Company
AR ELEEEDL
Direct Indirect
BHE SF:3
100 —
100 —

Principal activities

TEER

Investment holding

RE R

Investment holding

REZR

Investment holding

RARR

Civil engineering works and building
construction and maintenance

IATEREBFREERRE

Civil engineering works and
construction and maintenance

IATRERBERGRE

Leasing of equipment for construction
works

HETRERE
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Particulars of the joint venture are as follows:

Place of

registration
Name Business structure and operation
8 EBEE AR E XL

Excel-China Harbour Joint Venture Body unincorporate Hong Kong

REPEEERE FErENERE FE

The above investment in a joint venture is indirectly held by the
Company.

The Group has not shared any profit and other comprehensive
income of its joint venture during the year (2014: Nil) since the
joint venture was at breakeven during the year.

Ownership
interest

mEEESR

70

70

BEHAZLENFHBOT:

Percentage of

BAL
Voting Profit Principal
power sharing activity
RER MEIR TEBEH
50 70 Engineering works
contractor
50 70 TRRARRE

NER—BELEENRERAARMBE
KA -

AEBRFALESHEALLENEM
A REMEERA(CS—ME: &) J)
Re2bERFRNEREE FEMREME -

Group rE
2015 2014
—E-HF —F-mE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FE T
Gross amount due from customers for EREFH
contract works BN TEREE 31,028 79,978
Contract costs incurred plus recognised EEARNEHKARMEZS K
profits less recognised losses to date B R m F R B R E 1B 2,729,350 2,769,609
Less: Progress billings R HE 2 AR B FRIA (2,698,322) (2,689,631)
31,028 79,978

Annual Report 2014/15 1 OO
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101

Accounts receivable represented receivables for contract works.
The payment terms of contract work receivables are stipulated
in the relevant contracts. The credit period is generally one
month. The carrying amounts of accounts receivable
approximate to their fair values.

As at 31 March 2015, retentions receivable included in
accounts receivable amounted to HK$120,041,000 (2014:
HK$118,505,000) which are repayable on terms ranging from
two to three years.

The ageing analysis of the accounts receivable that are not

individually nor collectively considered to be impaired is as
follows:

Group

Past due but not impaired: 60 BB 3 R E ¢
One to three months past due mE—==1A
Four to six months past due 0 B Y = 7 E A
Over six months past due 60 B R 38 7 (E A

Neither past due nor impaired BY 28 B U8 SEORUE

Accounts receivable that were past due but not impaired relate
to a number of independent customers that have a good track
record with the Group. Based on past experience, the directors
are of the opinion that no allowance for impairment is
necessary in respect of these balances as there has not been a
significant change in credit quality and the balances are still
considered fully recoverable. The Group does not hold any
collateral or other credit enhancement over these balances.

Accounts receivable that are neither past due nor impaired
relate to a number of independent customers for whom there
was no recent history of default.

Excel Development (Holdings) Limited

MBEZERBERAR

EMEREANTIIREERR - AN TIEE
WHOZHEAREBEOTTR - 8
H—gr—EA BUREFRNEEERER
NFERE

R_E—RAF=ZA=+—8 EUEZ+FE
S M) FE U AR B8 3R 1E 5120,041,0008 T (= F
— P9 4F : 118,505,000/ 7T) * R BN T
BE=F

I % {8 Bl ok B B8 3R AR AR BY B W BR R

FREe TN T
*EE
2015 2014
—E-&E —T—NF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET TET
8,330 2,696
209 2
2 83
8,541 2,781
169,248 178,966
177,789 181,747

BHMEYERENERERLDERE T
YEP REEREERFNLHERLT - R
BAERR EFRR ZEHEBREAR
WMEEE HEHRERERABERNNE -
BEMARRU2BREEBES - AEEY
B ZEERT AT AER M EME AR

EAMTERENERNRERBRZH
BYEFHER  ®RFALEIHARBLE -
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As at 31 March 2015, the aggregate amounts of accounts
receivable pledged to secure the Group’s banking facilities
amounted to HK$86,161,000 (2014: HK$92,558,000).

Prepayments
Deposits and other receivables

Due from the Retained Vantage
Group (note)

Note: The amount was unsecured, interest-free and has no fixed terms

of repayment.

None of the above assets is either past due or impaired. The
in the above balances
receivables for which there was no recent history of default.
The carrying amounts of other receivables and deposits

financial assets included

approximate to their fair values.

R-Z—RFE=ZA=+—H8 A&£EAEEE
BRITEEMBEROBERERBE A
86,161,000/ jt (—ZF — Y £F : 92,558,000/%8

JC) ©
Group Company
KEH b /N
2015 2014 2015 2014
—E-HF —T—NF ZEBE-HFE —T—NF
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
FHE T FE T FHExT FHE T
TEAF R IE 2,915 5,301 196 160
e & H b R 12,923 24,732 = —
RN AEREBEBHKIE
(Kt at) 204 1,400 = —
16,042 31,433 196 160

relate to

H e

Annual Report 2014/15
—E-N/-LFEFER
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Bt ERRERERR L2EREEEER

THEEREAMTERE Ld&EHE
EWMEREETEI Y ER
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Group Company
FEE RAF
2015 2014 2015 2014

—E-HF —T—NmNFE ZE-HF —T—NNF

Cash and cash equivalents: ReERBEEZEED -
Cash and bank balances Re RIRITHEH
Non-pledged time deposits AT 7 R

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily
bank deposit rates. Short term time deposits are made for
varying periods of between one day and three months
depending on the immediate cash requirements of the Group,
and earn interest at the respective short term time deposit
rates. The cash and cash equivalents are deposited with banks
with high credit ratings and no recent history of default.

HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000

FTERT TR FTERT TET

133,546 156,470 316 416
10,147 10,084 = —
143,693 166,554 316 416

RITFERRERBARTERNEXEEN
TR ERDAE - RFAEENNRFRS
FE EHEHFEFRNHERNF-HE=E
ATE - WK %R E B 7 508 & BRI
S -RekAeFZENERRERTIRS
K BA 30 485E #) R SR VIR AT ©

Group FEHE
2015 2014
—®-IF —T-mE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHxT FHBT
Due to third parties ERE=F 41,276 137,941
Due to the Retained Vantage Group (note) [EftEIZRBEE (F) 60,188 97,591
101,464 235,532

Note: The amount was unsecured, interest-free and has no fixed terms
of repayment.

1 03 Excel Development (Holdings) Limited
RRERBRAF

Bret: ERRERERR L2EREEEER
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Group (Cont’'d)

An ageing analysis of the accounts payable as at the end of
each reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as follows:

Current to 3 months
4 to 6 months
Over 6 months

= =1 A
/9= < fE A
78 38 /< fE A

At 31 March 2015, retentions payable included in accounts
payable amounted to HK$63,608,000 (2014: HK$120,896,000),
which are normally settled on terms ranging from two to three
years. The carrying amounts of accounts payable approximate
to their fair values.

Accounts payable are non-interest-bearing and are normally
settled on terms ranging from 7 to 30 days. The payment
terms are stipulated in the relevant contracts.

7 55 8 (1K)
TIHRBREZAPN S HRERRENEX
Z MR AT

2015 2014
—E—FREF —ZE—4F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FE T FHE T
97,908 235,246
3,383 63

173 223
101,464 235,532

R_E—AF=ZA=1+—8 " ENFER+E
S /(IR B FIE £63,608,0008 L (=
— PO 4F :120,896,000/8 L) * — AWM ZE =
FREE - BNREFOEEEREELRFEE

t

= o

BNERBRANE  —RRTE0BRE
B XGERREBEHTRR -

Group
rEH
2015 2014
—E-EF —T—NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FH& T
Other payables oAb JE AR 1,358 1,212
Accruals EiRE A 1,846 1,934
3,204 3,146

Other payables are non-interest-bearing and are expected to be
settled within one year. The carrying amounts of other
payables and accruals approximate to their fair values.

HitpENRRRAFE  AFEHR —FA)
B HitEN R LARERANKREERE

FEMBE -

Company
AT
2015 2014
—E-RfFE —T—NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET THET

155 72
285 265
440 337

> Tl

Annual Report 2014/15 1 04
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The movements of deferred tax liabilities during the year are as BRLEBIEBERFANEZHNT
follows:
Group AEHE

Depreciation
allowance in
excess of related
depreciation

BBEBEITEN
TERBE
HK$'000
FHET
At 1 April 2013 R-TE—Z=ZFMWA—H 13
Deferred tax credited to profit or loss during the year FARAGFAEREARELERE
(note 10) (B #t10) (8)
At 31 March 2014 and 1 April 2014 RZE—WF=A=+—HK
—T-mMFEWPA—H 5
Deferred tax charged to profit or loss during the year FAEERERENBRAELERIA
(note 10) (Ktat10) 3
At 31 March 2015 RZE—RAF=F=1+—H 8
At 31 March 2015 and 2014, there was no significant R-E—RAFER-_T—NF=Z/A=+—H"
unrecognised deferred tax liability for taxes that would be AEBEETHBEARR —HEEEENRE
payable on the unremitted earnings of certain of the Group's HRMNBMEELEAIXNREMASRNEBRE
subsidiaries or a joint venture as the Group has no liability to KEANAERELHBEEE BARAE
additional tax should such amounts be remitted. BB ESEsELZS RN ME N
1B o
There are no income tax consequences attaching to the AARMEEHRRINRETGEE MG
payment of dividends by the Company to its then shareholder. BER -

1 05 Excel Development (Holdings) Limited
RRERBRAF
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Shares

Authorised:

500,000,000
(2014: 500,000,000)

ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each

Issued and fully paid:

200,000,000
(2014: 200,000,000)

ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each

A summary of the movements in the Company’s authorised and

issued share capital is as follows:

Authorised:
At 1 April 2013

Increase in authorised share
capital on 21 November 2013

At 31 March 2014,
1 April 2014 and
31 March 2015

g

JETE R AN
500,000,000 (= — P44 :
500,000,000 %)

BEITERHT:
200,000,000f% (ZZF—MO 4 :
200,000,000 %)

Note
M &t
VETE R
R-ZT—=4mA—H
RZZE—=F+—H=+—H
A E R AR (a)

R-Z—NFE=A=+—H
—E-NFENOMA—ABK
—E—RF=A=+—H

FIREEO.0ETTH E R

FIREEO.01ETTH) EiE A

ZIN/N

2015 2014
—E-EHF —FmE
HK$°000 HK$'000
TR THET
5,000 5,000
2,000 2,000

ADEAERCBEITRANESHERMT

Number of
ordinary shares Nominal value of
of HK$0.01 each ordinary shares

BREE
0.018 T
VEBERHA EEREE
HK$'000
TAET
37,000,000 370
463,000,000 4,630
500,000,000 5,000

Annual Report 2014/15 1 06
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Shares (Cont’'d)

Issued and fully paid: EETRERE:
At 1 April 2013 R-T—=®mA—H
Issue of new shares pursuant to  RIEEMA
the Reorganisation BITHAR D
Capitalisation Issue B AR BT
Issue of new shares pursuant to 1R & f% {7 3 &

the Share Offer

At 31 March 2014,
1 April 2014 and
31 March 2015

Notes:

(a)

(b)

107

BATH A

“E-NHEMA-BAR

On 21 November 2013, an ordinary resolution of the Company
was passed and pursuant to which:

0]

(i)

the authorised share capital of the Company was increased
from HK$370,000 to HK$5,000,000 by the creation of
463,000,000 additional shares of HK$0.01 each, ranking
pari passu in all respects with existing shares of the
Company; and

the Group acquired the entire interests in Great Jump and
Top Integration, together with the shareholder loans
owned by Great Jump and Top integration to Profit
Chain, pursuant to the Reorganisation and in
consideration the Company credited as fully paid the nil
paid share registered in the name of Profit Chain and
allotted and issued 49,999,999 ordinary shares at an
issue price of HK$0.92 per share credited as fully paid to
Profit Chain.

Pursuant to the authority given by the resolutions of the then
shareholder of the Company on 21 November 2013, a sum of
HK$1,000,000 standing to credit of the share premium account
of the Company was approved to be capitalised and applied in
paying in full at par of 100,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.01

each for allotment and issue on

10 December 2013 (the

“Capitalisation Issue”).

Excel Development (Holdings) Limited
TRRERERARE

RZTE—MF=R=+—H "

—E-RF=A=1+—H

IR 45 (&)

Number of Issued
shares in issue capital
ERTRHOKE ERITRA

Notes HK$'000
M &t FAET
1 —
(a) 49,999,999 500
(b) 100,000,000 1,000
(c) 50,000,000 500
200,000,000 2,000

W&t -
@ RZE—=F+—HA=Z+—H AQFA-=E

LT@AZRESEBREL

(i) ARNEWETERABBER
463,000,000 & I% E (0.0178 LK)
MRS {5 0 E1370,0000 JT i o0 =
5,000,000/ 7T + FE N9 B2 A A A
BERMESFAZBEREEN: &

(ii) A &= E W B Great Jump K Top
Integration ) 2 &B # &= + & [7 Great
Jump K Top Integration & /X Profit
Chain®IRERE K - IREBEZTHERER
RE A2FAARINEHRZ TR
RUABAES R BRA R R M &R
M Profit Chain® T » WIRETES
[%0.92% 7t [A Profit  Chain B2 % Jx 2%
749,999,999/ A BR 71| {F &1 & 1) &
Ak e

BEAAFNEHRERA-_ZT—=ZF1+—A7
Zt+-HBBRAZRHHNERE  AQ
A) AR 19 Ji B BR 7 A9 3 BR € 581,000,000 7T
CEMERTEN WEAR-_T—=F
T A+ARERFETEREENEITH
100,000,000 ABRZ| BB EMH LB ([E
AL EEAT]) ©
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Shares (Cont’'d)
Notes.: (Cont'd)

(©

(a)

(b)

(9]

In connection with the listing of the shares of the Company on
the Stock Exchange (the “Share Offer”), 50,000,000 new
ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each were issued at a price of
HK$1.2 per share for a total cash consideration, before
expenses, of HK$60,000,000. Dealings in the shares of the
Company on the Stock Exchange commenced on 11 December
2013.

Group

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements
therein for the year are presented in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity.

Merger reserve

Merger reserve of the Group represents the capital
contributions from the then shareholder of the
subsidiaries now comprising the Group before the
completion of the Reorganisation.

Company

At 1 April 2013 R-ZE—=FmMAB—AH

Loss and total comprehensive income 4 [E &8 &
for the year TH AL
Issue of new shares pursuant to the 1R IEE 4
Reorganisation BAT IR 9
Capitalisation Issue BRI T
Issue of new shares pursuant to the RIER K & &
Share Offer BATHAR 1
Share issue expenses MR1DEEITH X

At 31 March 2014 and at
1 April 2014

Loss and total comprehensive income
for the year

E-Z-—mMFEWNA—H
FEBER
ESE QAN E ]

At 31 March 2015

KRZZE—mF=A=+—H

RZZE—RF=A=+—AH

i 7 (#%)
EZNCD

(©

(@)

(b)

(9]

Notes
ioFia

25(a)
25(b)

25(c)

RARRBRMREAET(RMHEES]D
iM% * 50,000,000% &A% E(E0.01% 7T I 3T
LTREBR IR 2B THERET B8
& RE K X) A60,000,000% 7T °
RABRHR -E—=F+-A+—BEH

ZHRBESR -

REH
AEERAFENRERELEES
REAEZEHRET -

BHREE
AEEMEHREEHEEREARTKAH
REAKANEEOKE QR E KRR
MEALE -

b /N
Share  Accumulated
premium losses Total
B’ 5% 8 RitEE et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FAET
— (88) (88)
— (10,525) (10,525)
45,501 — 45,501
(1,000) — (1,000)
59,500 — 59,500
(8,515) — (8,515)
95,486 (10,613) 84,873
— (422) (422)
95,486 (11,035) 84,451
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(a

At 31 March 2015, the guarantees given by the Group to
certain banks in respect of performance bonds in favour
of certain contract customers amounted to
HK$23,055,000 (2014: HK$29,911,000).

At 31 March 2015, the Company and the Group have
given guarantees in favour of certain banks to the extent
of HK$189,000,000 (2014: HK$164,000,000) in respect
of banking facilities granted by those banks to a
subsidiary of the Company and all of which were not
utilised.

At 31 March 2015, the Company had given unlimited
performance guarantees in favour of a customer for
contract works (the “Contract Customer”) in respect of
losses, claims, damages, costs and expenses caused by
non-compliance with the terms and conditions of the
construction contract entered into between the Group
and the Contract Customer.

In the ordinary course of the Group’s construction business,
the Group has been subject to a number of claims due to
personal injuries suffered by employees of the Group or the
Group's subcontractors in accidents arising out of and in
the course of their employment. The directors are of the
opinion that such claims are well covered by insurance and
would not result in any material adverse impact on the
financial position or results and operations of the Group.

As lessor

The Group leases certain of its equipment under an operating
lease arrangement. Lease for equipment is negotiated for a
term of thirty months.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had total future
minimum lease receivables under non-cancellable operating
lease falling due as follows:

Within one year
In the second to fifth years, inclusive

109

—FR

Excel Development (Holdings) Limited
RRERBRAF

(b)

N-EBE—RE=A=+—8  KEHRK®
BIETANEFZBHREMASE
TR 1742 M & (R &23,055,000/% 7T
(ZZ—PY4 : 29,911,000 1) °

RZE—RF=A=+—"H8 £ARaK&
AEBBRETFRITE TFAAR K — A
MBARZE2HABARTEERES
189,000,000/ st(= & — I F:
164,000,000/ 7T) [A) 3% 5 R 17 VB (1 2
R o

RZZE-—RF=ZR=+—H X5EER
—HEIARIRAHEF([RHERPDZ
BRIVHWEZAY  ARARMZAK
BB EIT A KRR AR (M B H
ERWER  BRBF  RKARMA
SERHBEBOER -

EAEERZEXTNARBES &
SERXAEEDERNERBRARER
BHRZLEBINEHAGBEEMRAA
SERLETRR EERA - AH
EEBRRERNAREE  TEHRK
SEOPBRR  FEREEBRE
MEBRNMFZE -

FREAEA
AEEIREEERERHEMLE TRME -
EHERORFEEAEFHA=TAEA

RBEHR  ARERBEIAIHELLHEE

A
A

N

_|

E_EZFLF(BRHEEEMF)

R 5B 8 ST B9 R 2R & K & 4R 58 4D

2015 2014
—E—EHF —E—mF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTHET FH T
8,507 —
11,343 —
19,850 —
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As lessee
The Group leases certain of its office properties under
operating lease arrangements. Leases for

properties are

negotiated for terms ranging from one to four years.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had total future

minimum
leases falling due as follows:

Within one year

lease payments under non-cancellable operating

—FR

In the second to fifth years, inclusive £

ERAAA
AEERELLHELHEREE THA
ENE-KHERHEEFHN T —ENO
F o

NERE %ﬁ%% N2 B AR IR A AT A
EHEBARTIERSINOARX KRS
BWEEIT -

2015 2014
—E-RF — &
HK$°000 HK$'000
FTH T THET
3,973 3,516
ZFRAF(BREEREMT) 2,735 4,483
6,708 7,999

Q) BREAVBBRREMBHFROZH

(@) In addition to the transactions and balances detailed
elsewhere in these financial statements, the Group had the
following transactions with related parties during the year:

(i)  Subcontracting fee paid to the
Retained Vantage Group

(i) Subcontracting fee paid to a joint
venture of the Retained Vantage
Group

(iii) Management fee income and staff
cost reimbursement received from
the Retained Vantage Group

(iv) Rental expense paid to the Retained
Vantage Group

(v) Interest income received from the
Retained Vantage Group

K aE &R - ﬁEIF¢WEA%$E
HEIT TR
2015 2014
—E—EHfF — O
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHE T FE T
TR FRERBEEN
AEE 158,101 768,969
TNTFEREEREEER
ﬁA”%E%
o) 1,041 1,492
Xgﬁﬁﬁm%
MERER AR
8Tk AE (S — 5,531
iﬁ%ﬁﬁmﬁ
MEEZE 620 620
XE%%%E
EORAIPSR N — 168
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31 March 2015

-

11

—AF=ZA=+—H

(@) (Contd)
The above transactions were conducted on terms and
conditions mutually agreed between the relevant parties.
The directors are of the opinion that these related party
transactions were conducted in the ordinary course of
business of the Group.

(b) Outstanding balances with related parties
Other than the balances with subsidiaries and the
Retained Vantage Group as disclosed in notes 16, 20
and 22 to the financial statements, the Company and
the Group had no outstanding balances with related
parties as at the end of the reporting period.

(c) Compensation of key management
personnel of the Group
Further details of compensation of key management
personnel of the Group are included in notes 8 and 9 to
the financial statements.

Except for item (a)(ii), the related party transactions in respect
of item (a) above also constitute connected transactions or
continuing connected transactions as defined in Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules.

The Group's principal financial instruments include the gross
amount due from customers for contract works, accounts and
other receivables, deposits, amounts due from the Retained
Vantage Group, accounts and other payables, accruals of costs
for contract works and cash and cash equivalents. Details of
these financial instruments are disclosed in the respective notes
to the financial statements.

The Group’s ordinary activities expose it to various financial
risks, including credit risk and liquidity risk. The risks associated
with financial instruments and the policies on how to mitigate
these risks are described below. Management monitors closely
the Group's exposures to financial risks to ensure appropriate
measures are implemented in a timely and effective manner.

Excel Development (Holdings) Limited
RRERBRAF

(@ &
iﬂ %ﬁ?ﬁﬁﬁ’?xﬁ*ﬁﬁﬁ% RS
&1‘7&1/‘*5_17 CEEBERE REWE
%Eﬁ/\ﬁilmﬁ%iﬂw ‘e

1&1? °

(b) EHEESFWRSEELEH
MBS RARM 16 - 20 22FTHEN
BB AR RBIEREBEBNEHRIN
ARBRAEER S REHEH KRB
mEREEHRARBELS -

() XEEEXEEEASHRMH

FRAEETIZEBRAEH SN EM
FIEE N MR 8N -

R EMMRAEVMAERFTE BRI L@ 1B
H B E 77 22 5 (B (a)(i) T2 M) TR B R B 2 2 5

AEENTIEZSRIAREERREFRANT
2R - VW% XN H A EUGR ~ RE
fEW B =R R E A - Vﬁ%m&ﬁ%f
(BE ﬁhé%l&ﬁ$u&ﬁi&ﬁ
BY - Z52r TENFERTER ﬁm%
HERM ERE -

AREEEFEBBRTEYSEYBHA
% BEEAAREADECAR - AW
BT A 0 B b B0 R IR % 5 B IR 1 I
% ETXHL - SRR ERAREN
T 0BT LR+ DA BEIR S AS SRR
B i -
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Credit risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to bank
balances, time deposits, and accounts and other receivables.
The Group’s maximum credit risk exposure at the end of the
reporting period in the event of other parties failing to
perform their obligations is represented by the carrying amount
of each financial asset as stated in the consolidated statement
of financial position.

Management monitors the creditworthiness and payment
patterns of each debtor closely and on an ongoing basis. The
Group’s accounts receivable from contract works represent
interim payments or retentions certified by the customers under
terms as stipulated in the contracts and the Group does not
hold any collateral over these receivables. As the Group’s
customers in respect of contract works primarily consist of
government departments and developers or owners with strong
financial backgrounds, management considers that the risk of
irrecoverable receivables from contract works is not significant.

At 31 March 2015, the Group had certain concentrations of
credit risk as 47% (2014: 45%) of the total accounts receivable
were due from the Group’s largest external customer and 91%
(2014: 99%) of the total accounts receivable were due from
the Group’s five largest external customers, respectively.

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group’s exposure to
credit risk arising from accounts and other receivables are
disclosed in notes 19 and 20, respectively, to the financial
statements.

Liquidity risk

The Group’s policy is to monitor regularly the current and
expected liquidity requirements to ensure that it maintains
sufficient reserves of cash and adequate committed lines of
funding from major financial institutions to meet its liquidity
requirements in the short and long term. In addition, banking
facilities have been put in place for contingency purposes.

FEERRE
AEENEERREIERBRITHER  EH
TFRAR B AR R E YR - fEHE
RSN REBITEEY  ARERHRE
HEREEENEREERREAERER
EREEESAMBRARRFTAINER
Ao

EREERBENTYERSEHANGEE
EREREN - REBO AL TIEEWRIE
RIEEARNETBIER O E P AR
EPRZENRENIE  MASEYTHZSE
YR FHEMERR - BRAEENE D
TREFPIZSBMFMANET NiEEDN
BERPHIET BEER/STREREAENT
12 WK LR K e

R-ZE—RFZA=+—H8B AEEBEFEES
FREERBRETMER  EBUKRKAETES
M47% (ZZE— P04 : 45%) R A AN & E K &
KIINEBEFE - MEWEBERABEHNNY% (=
T F %) REAEENARINTE
}5 °

EAAEEERERREMERKEL:
NEERBWNE—FSEE  2RIEH
BHRARM F19M 204 & -
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AEENBRAEHERABRESRRD
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31 March 2015
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Liquidity risk (Cont’d)

The following table details the remaining contractual maturities
at the end of the reporting period of the Group’s financial
liabilities, which are based on contractual undiscounted cash
flows (including interest payments computed using contractual
rates, or if floating, based on rates as at the end of the
reporting period) and the earliest date that the Group could be
required to repay:

Group
Within 1 year
or on demand
—F Rk A E
TREE
HK$'000
FHET
As at 31 March 2015 R-ZE-HF=H=+—H
Accounts payable FE A BR 3K 38,439
Accruals of costs for contract BREHDIREKAE
works 45,237
Other payables (note 23) o Ath JE A R (K 5£23) 1,358
85,034
As at 31 March 2014 R=ZB-mE=ZHA=+—H
Accounts payable JE A BR 3K 117,749
Accruals of costs for contract EREHNIEAAR
works 11,790
Other payables (note 23) H fth JE ST 3R (B 7#23) 1,212
130,751
Company

All of the Company’s financial liabilities at the end of the
reporting period are repayable within one year or on demand.

1 1 3 Excel Development (Holdings) Limited
RRERBRAF

REE S (&)
TRAJNAEENEHBERNBRERNER
ROFBRAOH  DRESHARAURRSR
EEERAOMERR(WEF I R)RE
1A ¥ 5 B A SRB B R R G RO ) BN RO &
AEBAEAERENRFEARRAY

&
Between 1 Between 2
and 2 years and 5 years Total
—&BCZF —ERF it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET
60,782 2,243 101,464
— = 45,237
— — 1,358
60,782 2,243 148,059
86,762 31,021 235,532
— — 11,790
— — 1,212
86,762 31,021 248,534
2NN
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Capital management EeER

The primary objective of the Group's capital management AEFEESERRENETEZEARRERALE
policy is to ensure that the Group will be able to continue as a BEREBELE RANERELEFHERAN
going concern while maximising the return to stakeholders EEEIREEHE AL -

through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance.

The directors review the capital structure on a periodical basis. EZeTHRTEARE - (EARFIEN
As part of this review, the directors consider the cost of capital —#n  EFEERESKNAREZEES
and the risks associated with each class of capital and will MR R K - I iR T AR B 1T R g
balance the Group'’s overall capital structure through new share BREEREEBRTFERAEENEREZER
issues as well as raising new debts or repayment of existing B o
debts.
The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net AEBERERLRETER  MEBERL X
cash and bank balances divided by the total capital. Net cash DIER e RIRTERFERAEREER
and bank balances are calculated as the total of interest- H - RBeRkRBROTEHRFEAKXAERITE
bearing bank loans less cash and cash equivalents. Total capital REeERReRESEEYTE - EXLE
refers to equity attributable to owners of the parent. The BIENAREEARGER - R_Z—AF
gearing ratio as at 31 March 2015 was as follows: Z—A=+—BAmERLEET:
Group rEE
2015 2014
—E—EHF —E—MOF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET FHET
Interest-bearing bank loans FERITER — —
Less: Cash and cash equivalents BIReERIREEED (143,693) (166,554)
Net cash and bank balances (note 21) Re RiRITHEBRFEMNZ21) (143,693) (166,554)
Equity attributable to owners of the parent & 2R A A FE1G # = 226,127 210,253
Gearing ratio (%) 18 12 b (%) N/A & E A N/A 7~ A
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On 5 June 2015, Sureguard Limited, (“Sureguard”) a wholly-
owned subsidiary of Vantage, has entered into a loan
agreement with Best Trader, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company and pursuant to which Sureguard agreed to make
available an interest-free loan facility of HK$50,000,000 to Best
Trader for a term of 30 months (the “Sureguard Loan”).

The Sureguard Loan will be secured by the share charge of
Great Jump, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company and
the holding company of Excel Engineering and Excel
Construction (the “Share Charge”).

The Sureguard Loan and the Share Charge constitute special
deals under the Hong Kong Code on Takeovers and Mergers
which require consent of the Securities and Futures
Commission of Hong Kong and the approval from independent
shareholders of the Company at the forthcoming extraordinary
general meeting.

Further details of the Sureguard Loan and the Share Charge are
set out in the Company’s announcement dated 16 June 2015.

The financial statements were approved and authorised for
issue by the board of directors on 19 June 2015.

1 1 5 Excel Development (Holdings) Limited

MBEZERERAR

R-ZE—RFARH THRERRAF(H
%1 BEZZ2EAWMBAR)EBest Trader (K
RRIZZEMB AR I BRI - Eit -
15 3% A B #% % P Best Trader 4 250,000,000
BILZ30EAREERRE(HRER]D -

53 B Z#% bAGreat Jump (AR Az 2 &K
B A7) K15z T F2 BiExcel Construction Z 3%
AR Z R EE R (TROARLL) -

DREFRRBRODMLEXEBKRERSE 6
SRAPETZHRIRS ARBREESFLE
EFEBERZEGREBEREANS BMBKRER
BFRIRE EMARE Z B IR A -
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